Public Document Pack

Wirral Schools Forum
Date:
Time:

Wednesday, 30 April 2014
6.00 pm

Venue:

Council Chamber, Wallasey Town Hall

Contact Officer:
Tel:
e-mail:
Website:

Sue Ashley
0151 666 4579
SueAshley@wirral.gov.uk
http://www.wirral.gov.uk

AGENDA
1.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING ON 22ND JANUARY 2014 (Pages 1 6)

2.

MATTERS ARISING

3.

NARROWING THE GAP (Pages 7 - 8)

4.

SCHOOLS BUDGET UPDATE (Pages 9 - 12)

5.

TRADE UNION FACILITIES TIME (Pages 13 - 20)

6.

SPECIAL SCHOOL INCLUSION FUNDING (Pages 21 - 72)

7.

BUDGET MONITORING AND ANTICIPATED OUTTURN 2013-14
(Pages 73 - 78)

8.

CONSULTATION ON REFORMS TO THE SCHOOL FUNDING
SYSTEM (Pages 79 - 84)

9.

TRADED SERVICES UPDATE (Pages 85 - 88)

10.

HIGH NEEDS UPDATE AND WORK PLAN 2014-15 (Pages 89 - 90)

11.

IMPLEMENTATION OF UNIVERSAL FREE SCHOOL MEALS FOR
INFANTS (Pages 91 - 96)

12.

PROPOSALS FOR PUPIL PREMIUM PLUS (Pages 97 - 102)

13.

FUNDING FOR PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVE COSTS (Pages 103
- 104)

14.

WORKPLAN (Pages 105 - 106)

15.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

Agenda Item 1
WIRRAL SCHOOLS FORUM
22nd January 2014
MINUTES

Present:

Apologies:

Richard Longster (Chair)
Schools Group
S Allen
E Cogan
B Cummings
S Duggan
J Devine
K Frost
B Jordan
L Ireland
D Marchant

A Moore
S Peach
C Penn
G Pritchard
M Walker
A Whiteley
P Young
G Zsapka

Non-Schools Group
S Davies
B McGregor
J Owens

J Pierce (Nee Kenny)
N Reilly

In Attendance:
D Armstrong
S Ashley
J Bevan
S Blevins
C Chow
S Dainty

J Hassall
C McGowan
A Roberts
D Smith
Cllr P A Smith

J Gordon
S Higginson

C Hughes
K Podmore

1.

Minutes from the Meeting Held on 13th November 2013
The minutes from the meeting were accepted as a true record.

2.

Matters Arising
§ Budget Savings were referred to Cabinet on 9th December 2013 and ratified on
16th December. All options affecting schools were passed.
o Education Social Welfare will be offered as a traded service through the
EQ management board.
o Crossing Patrols will also be offered as a traded service. Schools have
already been consulted concerning a flat rate effective from 1st April 2014.
The crossing patrol staff would continue to be employed by the LA.
o There were a number of concerns relating to the Crossing Patrols.
Parental pressure means some schools will have no choice but to pay and
this funding is taken away from education of the children. There were
other concerns related to areas where budgets are being reduced or costs
passed to schools, however, it was pointed out that council cuts of £83m

Page 1

will have an effect on all areas of spend and decisions have not been
taken lightly.
o The LA agreed to look into the issue where there is a shared crossing and
one school refuses to pay.
§ The LA is still waiting for a response to their application relating to increased
numbers of High Needs students.
§ The LA have not yet had a response from the EFA concerning the application
for the exemption from the requirement of using the MFG for High Needs top
ups. However, they have indicated that there is no requirement for an MFG for
inclusion bases.
3.

Data for School Funding 2014-15
Andrew Roberts explained that this report details the data used for the schools
funding formula for 2014-15. The report identifies the elements of the formula and
the national and local changes that were agreed at Cabinet in October. The tables
highlight the changes in the unit values and pupil numbers between 2013-14 and
2014-15.
Resolved
Forum noted the report and the changes in the unit values within the schools
funding formula.

4.

Schools budget 2014-15
Andrew Roberts outlined the Schools Budget for 2014-15. The first part of the
report details how the funding is allocated to the LA and the latter part how it is
allocated to schools.
§ The Dedicated Schools Grant continues to be received on a spend plus
basis and split into 4 blocks, Schools, High Needs, Early Years and Other.
§ The Minimum Funding Guarantee (MFG) remains at -1.5%
§ Net falling rolls will continue until 2016.
§ Rates increased costs reflect the 20% liability for academy schools and the
overall reduction in discretionary rate relief.
§ There is headroom/growth of £1.15m in the budget mainly arising from a
DSG surplus in 2012-13, a difference between pupil funding within the ISB
and DSG and reserves that are no longer required. £732,000 of this growth
is for one year only.
§ The SEN top up budget for 2014-15 is £17m. This includes provision for
schools, 6th Forms and further education colleges and other providers.
§ The contribution to combined budgets of £2,499,600, noting that there are no
new commitments or increases in expenditure.
§ The PPM budget has been reduced by £200,000 in 2014-15 to reflect the
council’s previously agreed reduction in funding. The remaining PPM budget
of £449,000 is now fully funded from DSG.
§ The PFI Affordability gap is funded by the LA. There will be a report on this
budget saving option at a future meeting.
Resolved
The Schools Forum approved the content of the report as follows:I. The contributions to combined budget.
II. The reduction of £200,000 in the PPM budget.

Page 2

III.
IV.
V.

VI.

5.

The use of headroom totalling £1,215,100 of which £732,000 is only for one
year.
The high needs contingency of £908,900.
The use of the reserves in setting the Schools Budget and reclassifying the
remaining balance for Automatic Meters to a reserve for the installation of
defibrillators in schools.
The Schools Budget and the views of the Schools Forum to be referred to
the budget meeting of Cabinet on 12th February 2014.

De-delegation of Budgets
Andrew Roberts identified areas within the schools budget that could be dedelegated in 2014-15. Only Schools Forum members, in their relevant phase, can
decide if these areas should be taken out of the formula budget before it is allocated
to schools. There was a discussion by the secondary representatives about Trade
Union facility time. For the secondary de-delegation it was agreed to split Trade
Union costs from the other special staff costs and to vote on the 2 areas separately.
Resolved
1. The Primary Forum Representatives agreed, to de-delegate each of the
following budgets for the financial year 2014-15:- Contingency
- Special Staff Costs
- School Library Service
- Insurance
- MEAS
- FSM eligibility
- Behaviour support
2. The Secondary Forum Representatives agreed to de-delegate each of the
following budgets for the financial year 2014-15:§ Contingency
§ Special Staff Costs (excluding TU facility time)
§ Insurance
§ MEAS
§ FSM eligibility
§ Behaviour Support
3. The Secondary Forum Representatives did not agree to de-delegate the Trade
Union facility time.

6.

Pupil Premium 2014-15
Sue Ashley highlighted the pupil premium received in 2013-14 and the in year
change to primary FSM premium. In 2014-15 FSM premium will increase to £1300
for primary schools and £935 for secondary schools. LAC Pupil premium will
increase to £1900 and will be extended to include adopted children, those leaving
care under guardianships and residence orders. Service children will move to “ever
4”. The total Pupil Premium for Wirral is estimated at £16.8m.
Resolved
Forum noted the report

Page 3

7.

Impact of Pupil Premium – Raising attainment
Deidre Smith outlined the work undertaken to identify what schools have spent their
pupil premium on and the effects it has had on narrowing the attainment gap
between those on free school meals compared to those who are not. Since 2013
Ofsted inspections have focussed more on the performance of children who are
eligible for the Pupil Premium.
In 2013-14 Pupil premium amounts ranged from £2,492 to £142,044 in primary
schools and £26,119 to £502,122 in Secondary Schools. Schools identified a large
number of ways in which they spend their pupil premium such as additional support
inside the class room, reducing class sizes and provision of materials or resources.
This was similar for primary and secondary schools. Tables identified the gaps
between FSM and non FSM children for different key stage levels, with the national
average. The results were mixed, in some areas the gap has widened and in other
areas it has narrowed.
The Wirral School Improvement team will continue to support and challenge
schools, particularly with regard to the ‘Narrowing the Gap’ target.
Some Forum members were concerned that the statistics should be treated with
caution as they are aware that other variables can affect outcomes.
Resolved
Forum noted the report

8

Budget Monitoring Update 2013-14
Andrew Roberts informed the group that there was an anticipated underspend of
£950k in centrally managed schools budgets for this financial year. A number of
under and overspends were detailed in the report, particularly:§ The PPM budget which currently has a £200,000 contribution from the
council, but it is proposed to fund from DSG.
§ The special staff costs budget is projected to overspend (£150,000).
§ The SEN Transition reserve which is in place to cover transitional issues as
we move to the new funding structure is expected to underspend (£500,000).
§ The Automatic Meter Reading reserve is no longer required but it is
proposed to use some of the balance to install defibrillators in schools and
the remainder to support schools budget in 2014-15 (£165,000).
Resolved
§ Forum noted the report.
§ Forum agreed to fund the PPM programme in full.
§ Forum agreed to a high needs reserve if the MFG is required 2014-15.
§ Forum agreed the redesignation of Automatic Reader reserve to fund
defibrillators in schools

9

Monitoring Excess Balances
Sue Ashley informed the group of the work done so far monitoring schools with
balances in excess of the DfE recommended levels of 8 and 5%. Fifteen schools
have provided spending plans. The main spend has been to support falling rolls,
contributions to capital, staffing and purchasing equipment.
Balances will continue to be monitored and subject to further reports once the 201314 outturn is complete.

Page 4

Resolved
Forum noted the report
10.

National Fair Funding Formula Proposals
Andrew reported verbally on the move towards a national formula. The DfE are
considering 2 options:§ Fund each school directly from EFA
§ Review the DSG formula funding to LAs.
A consultation paper is imminent.

11.

Working Group Updates
The membership of the working groups were updated as follows:
Early Years working Group
R Longster
J Devine
S Davies
L Ireland
C Hughes
D McDonald
High Needs Working Group
R Longster
K Frost
S Allen
B Jordan
D Marchant
School Funding Working Group
R Longster
K Frost
S Peach
J Gordon
E Cogan
G Zapka

12.

Work Plan
The dates of future meetings were noted:2nd April 2014
2nd July 2014

13.

Any Other Business
There was no other business.

Page 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3
WIRRAL COUNCIL

WIRRAL SCHOOLS FORUM 30/04/2014
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES
Narrowing the Gap – a key driver behind Wirral’s attainment gaps
_____________________________________________________________________

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Despite significant efforts to narrow the attainment gaps between disadvantaged children
and other pupils the gaps at both local and national level remain large and resistant to
change.
The relatively low expectations and aspirations of many disadvantaged children, and their
families, are often cited as contributing factors towards their underachievement. However,
the expectations of schools are also important factors in determining educational
outcomes. Until recently, it has been difficult to quantify these expectations.
There is evidence that many schools, inadvertently, have lower expectations for
disadvantaged children than for other pupils. In these cases, there is likely to be a
significant impact on the achievement of the disadvantaged children and consequently the
gaps.
2. BACKGROUND
In 2011 Wirral conducted research into the causes of its KS4 attainment gap, which is one
of the widest in the country.
An unexpected finding was that many schools were setting significantly lower attainment
targets for disadvantaged children than for their peers. This is because the target-setting
procedure, whether for the end of Year 7 or for the end of KS4, involves using attainment
at KS2 as the starting point for each child. Since disadvantaged children generally achieve
less well at KS2 than their peers, their starting points were lower and therefore so were
their targets. It didn’t matter whether secondary schools used Fischer Family Trust
estimates, 3 levels of progress or some other variant as the basis for setting targets - the
effect was the same. Attainment gaps are, to a large extent, an artefact of target-setting
processes that are based primarily on prior attainment.
It is reasonable to say that attainment targets are an explicit statement of educational
expectations, and therefore it was possible to conclude that in these cases schools had
lower expectations for disadvantaged children than for other children. The key point,
however, is that these schools were completely unaware of this.
A sample of primary schools showed a similar pattern.
The differences in the attainment targets for the two groups of children were large. At KS4
they were typically of the order of 25%, which is about three quarters of the final gap.
There is a large body of research that shows children’s attainment is very powerfully
influenced by their teachers’ expectations.

Page 7

It was concluded that a major reason why the gaps were so resistant to change is because
many schools were actually setting attainment targets to generate a gap, albeit
inadvertently so.
In 2012 the local authority invited those secondary schools that had significant numbers of
disadvantaged children to participate in a project to test whether targets did indeed have
the suspected effect on attainment. Three schools agreed, and the conditions of the
project were simple:
a) for the new Year 7 (in September 2012), the schools were required to
set attainment targets for disadvantaged children that were, on average, equal to
those for other pupils;
b) schools were required to submit termly assessment data to the local authority.
Since disadvantaged children, generally, were being set targets that were higher than they
would otherwise have been, the chances of their being ‘off-track’ to achieve them would
increase – crucially in the early part of their secondary education. This would make it more
likely that they would attract extra support/intervention, in turn increasing the likelihood that
they would catch up. There were no recommendations made as to which interventions
should be used.
It should be noted that a crucial element of the project was that, because of the elevated
targets for disadvantaged children, more support would be given to those of them deemed
‘off-track’, and at an earlier stage than would normally have happened.
If the hypothesis regarding expectations were true, it would have been expected that, at
the first data collection, disadvantaged children were lagging significantly behind other
children but, as time went on, they would show signs of catching up.
This is precisely what the data showed. Based on historic data, the pupils involved in the
project have a forecast gap at the end of KS4 of 22%. By the end of the first year, the gap
in the teacher assessments was only 6%.
There was no cost to the schools to implement the project. Furthermore, the project has
been discussed with several HMI, who have expressed their support for it.
CONCLUSION
Schools should compare the attainment targets they have already set for their
disadvantaged children with those set for other children. If there is a significant difference
between the two, schools should consider equalising them.
For future cohorts, schools should ensure that the attainment targets for disadvantaged
children are broadly equal to those for other children.
RECOMMENDATION
That the Forum notes the report
Julia Hassall
Director of Children’s Services

Page 8

Agenda Item 4
WIRRAL COUNCIL
SCHOOLS FORUM – 30th APRIL 2014
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES
Schools Budget update 2014-15

1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 This report updates the Schools Budget for changes that have been made since
it was reported to the Forum on 22nd January 2014. The overall Schools
Budget has reduced from £240m to £179m. A revised breakdown is included in
the appendix attached.
2.0 BUDGET CHANGES
2.1 PFI Affordability Gap £2,586,500.
The PFI Affordability Gap is discussed elsewhere on this agenda.
The gap is the difference between the contract costs to provide, maintain and
support 9 schools (£11m) and the grant and school income received to offset
these costs (£8.5m).
The Cabinet in reaching its decision on the Schools Budget on 12th February
resolved that “The Council regrets due to its financial challenges it is unable to
fund the full PFI affordability gap in 2014-15 and will reduce the Council
contribution to the schools budget by £600,000 to £2m.” The shortfall is
addressed in the Schools Budget by earmarking £600,000 from the underspend
in central school budgets in 2013-14
2.2

Primary & Secondary School Budgets
The Primary School budget was previously reported as £95m. This has been
reduced by £2.5m to take account of the de-delegation decisions taken at the
previous meeting, and the budget for 1 Primary Academy that is paid directly by
the Education Funding Agency (EFA).
The Secondary School budget has been reduced by £57m to take account of
de-delegation and the budgets for 13 Secondary Academies.

2.3

Special School Places
The adjustment of £1,178,600 is made to show the separate funding for 6th
form places – there will be 106 places in total in September 2014.

2.4

Early Years
Since the budget report was written in January the Early Years Census for
2014 has been finalised. The number of 3 and 4 year olds has increased
from 2,936 to 2,992. For each additional pupil the Dedicated Schools Grant
(DSG) is increased by £3816.57 (£214,000 in total). At this time the budget
assumes there will be no further change in the 2015 census (which will also
Page 9
be used to determine this budget).

2.5

High Needs Pupils
The funding for High Needs Pupils was finalised by the EFA in late March
following the submission and review of places by all local authorities last
December.
The funding for High Needs covers all children and students; both pre and
post 16, including those learners with learning difficulties and disabilities aged
16-24. Overall Wirral’s pupil baseline increased from 1594 to 1602 pupils as
follows:
Pupils in Sept 2013

Pupils in Sept 2014

Pre 16
Maintained Special
SEN Bases
E MAP
Non Maintained Special Schools
Totals

840
293
80
51
1,264

857
283
80
47
1,267

Post 16
Maintained Special
SEN in schools
Non Maintained Special Schools
FE and providers
Totals

127
60
12
131
330

107
54
13
161
335

Changes in pupil numbers have attracted the following changes in funding:
-

2.6

An increase of 3 Pre 16 places additional part year funding of £17,500
A reduction of 25 post 16 places at Schools/Academies £157,000cr
A full years effect of an increase in SEN bases in 2013-14 £75,000
Headroom to enhance local authorities funding based on pupil population
£225,000
An increase where there are additional post 16 school places in 2014-15
compared to 2013-14 £165,000.
Adjustments with the EFA for Post 16 pupils in schools and academies
with high needs £328,000cr.
Adjustments with the EFA for pre and post 16 places at non maintained
special schools £614,000cr.

Dedicated School Grant
At this time the overall DSG for Wirral’s Maintained Schools, Early Years and
High Needs will reduce from £237m to £176m. Further changes may be
made during the year to reflect Academy conversions or the Early Years
census in January 2015.

3.0

Recommendation
That the Forum note the report.

Julia Hassall
Director of Children's Services

Page 10

WIRRAL SCHOOLS BUDGET 2014-15
1. Individual Schools Budget
Primary Schools
Secondary Schools
Special Schools
SEN Bases
WASP
Wirral Hospital School
Early Years
Individual Schools Budget Total
2. Central School Costs
Early Years
Admissions
School closure / retirement costs
Licences & Subscriptions
Carbon Reduction
Schools Forum
School Harmonisation Costs
Contribution to Combined Budgets
PPM
PFI affordability gap
Costs delegated to schools
Library Service
Insurances
MEAS
School Specific Contingencies
Special Staff Costs
Behaviour Support
Free School Meals Eligibility
High Needs Pupils
SEN top Ups
Statements
Support For SEN
Indep Special School Fees
Education Out of School
Special School Transport
Non Delegated School Costs Total
Total Schools and central Costs
Dedicated Schools Grant Total
Use of Reserves
Grand Total

Base
Estimate
2014/15

Adjustment

95,028,500
88,032,000
9,678,900
2,848,000
640,000
1,352,300
15,337,000
212,916,700

(2,530,700)
(57,413,500)
(1,178,600)
(842,000)

214,000
(61,750,800)

489,700
365,400
326,000
152,000
0
10,600
450,000
2,336,200
449,000
2,586,500

Revised
Estimate
2014/15
92,497,800
30,618,500
8,500,300
2,006,000
640,000
1,352,300
15,551,000
151,165,900

489,700
365,400
326,000
152,000
0
10,600
450,000
2,336,200
449,000
2,586,500

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

195,000
57,700
260,400
107,500
673,200
96,500
13,900

195,000
57,700
260,400
107,500
673,200
96,500
13,900

8,825,900
4,641,100
2,292,900
3,909,200
248,600
58,200
27,141,300

55,600

(614,000)

845,800

8,881,500
4,641,100
2,292,900
3,295,200
248,600
58,200
27,987,100

240,058,000

(60,905,000)

179,153,000

(236,740,000)
(731,500)

60,905,000
(600,000)

(175,835,000)
(1,331,500)

Page 11
2,586,500

(600,000)

1,986,500

.

Page 12

Agenda Item 5
Report Title
Report to
Report from
Date

Provision of funding to pay for Professional Association and Trade
Union Facilities Time
Governing Bodies of Maintained Secondary Schools and Academy
Schools
Director of Children’s Services and Head of Human Resources and
Organisation Development
17 April 2014

Executive Summary
Background and Context
Schools are required to provide reasonable time off for elected representatives to
undertake trade union duties specified in the ACAS Code of Practice on time off for
trade union duties and activities (Jan 2010 Code of Practice 3).
Currently all primary and special schools de-delegate/buy back funding assigned to pay
for TU facilities times.
Money to pay for this provision has also been delegated to maintained secondary and
academy schools.
Wirral has one of the lowest cost of facilities time as a percentage of Total School Pay
Bill i.e. Less than 0.1% of Total Pay Bill.
The recommendation below formalises arrangements, where most secondary schools
and academies previously bought back TU Facilities time.
Recommendation
To deliver cost effective TU facilities time through a local collective agreement, it is
recommended that Governing Bodies contribute towards the facilities time for those
recognised Trade Unions representing Teachers, School Leaders and Support Staff at a
cost of £3 per pupil per annum effective from 1 April 2014.

Contact Officer
Sue Blevins
Strategic HR Business Partner (Schools and Council)
Email :
susanblevins@wirral.gov.uk
Tel:
0151 691 8383
Mobile:
07887 823962

Page 1 of 8

Page 13

REPORT ON THE PROVISION OF FUNDING TO PAY FOR PROFESSIONAL
ASSOCIATION AND TRADE UNION FACILITIES TIME
1.
Background
1.1
Schools Forum
At a meeting of the School Forum in January 2014, a decision was taken not to de-delegate
monies for TU facilities time to maintained Secondary Schools in Wirral. However, there
was a request for those representing secondary schools that a report be prepared to fully
outline issues and options for schools. This report has been prepared to address those
issues. All schools and academies have specific money in their budget to pay for the cost
of TU facilities time.
1.2
Legislation
By law, under section 168-170 of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation)
Act 1992, and as specified in the ACAS Code of Practice on Time off for Trade Union
Duties and Activities, trade union representatives are entitled to reasonable paid time off
from their regular job to enable them to perform their union duties and to undertake relevant
training.
Trade union members, including representatives, also have a statutory right to reasonable
unpaid time off to undertake trade union activities. Together, these arrangements constitute
facility time.
2.
Impact on Schools
2.1
Trade Union Duties
Union representatives in schools are entitled to reasonable paid time off during
working hours to take part in trade union duties, as defined in the ACAS Code of Practice
on time off for trade union duties and activities are attached in Appendix 1.
It should be noted that trade union health and safety representatives and union learning
representatives also have the legal right to reasonable paid time off to perform their
respective duties and undertake relevant training.
2.2
Trade union activities
To operate effectively and democratically, trade unions need the active participation of
members. It can also be very much in employers’ interests that such participation is
assured and help is given to promote effective communication between union
representatives and members in the work place. Union representatives and members are
entitled to reasonable un-paid time off for trade union activities, as defined in the ACAS
Code of Practice.
There is no right to time off for trade union activities which in themselves consist of
industrial action. There is no statutory right for union members or representatives to be paid
for time taken on TU Activities.
The Local Authority works with the Trade Unions to ensure that spending on facility time is
as efficient as possible. There should be full accountability and transparency on facility time
given by trade unions.
Page 2 of 8

Page 14

3.
Costing of TU Facilities time
3.1
% of Total School Pay bill
*DfE Guidance found that many local authorities and other employers have already
reduced spending to approximately 0.1% of the pay bill,
Wirral is currently less that 0.1 % of total pay bill
3.2
Funding of all TU facilities time
The legislation on time off for trade union activities applies to all employers, including for
those responsible for maintained schools, academies and free schools.
The *DfE guidance in January 2014 recognises the central pooling of funding as an option
and schools and academies can choose to buy into local authority pooled services,
through a traded service.
4.
4.1

How will contributions to TU facilities time be used?
Provide advice and representation to local members, including head teachers in
respect of individual casework such as disciplinary, grievance, sickness absence
and capability.

4.2

Provide representation to members on collective consultation issues such as
restructuring, redundancy, collective grievance.

4.3

Contribute to the development of locally developed and collectively agreed model
school employment policies and procedures.

4.4

Meet with the local authority and elected members as part of the Local Joint
Negotiation and Consultative requirements, on behalf of Wirral schools and
academies.

4.5

Meet with the local authority on behalf of schools to ensure that Health and Safety
requirements are met in Wirral schools and academies.

4.6

Essential communication regarding local, regional and national education policies.

5.
5.1

Benefits to the School of contributing to TU facilities time
Many individual schools would find it impossible to immediately find one of their own
employees with the level of knowledge, training and experience necessary to
undertake all the statutory duties listed in section 1 of the ACAS Code.

5.2

Even where such an employee existed, the delegated amount per school is unlikely
to cover the cost of the release time necessary for that employee to retain that level
of expertise – and s/he would be very under-utilised within their own school.

5.3

Alternatively, where provision is made on an Authority-wide basis, a small number of
specialised individuals can service the collective and individual needs of Wirral
schools very efficiently.

Page 3 of 8

Page 15

5.4

Individual members’ casework needs which make up the majority of TU work are
unpredictable.

5.5

The cost of releasing Local Association officers from their work commitments fall
unpredictably on a small number of schools.

5.6

It would be unfair to expect the schools or academies with elected officers to meet
the cost of their release.

5.7

Provide schools with Trade union representatives who have in depth local
knowledge of schools’ issues.

5.8

Ensures experienced Trade Union representatives dealing with all employment
issues.

5.9

Have established working relationships with LA Officers to support a speedier
resolution of issues.

5.10

Have established working relationships with Head teachers at local level.

5.11

Ability to look borough wide at issues affecting schools, enabling consistency of
approach across schools.

5.12

Pro-active and early intervention and prevention approach to dealing with issues
affecting school staff.

5.13

By far the most efficient and fair system for funding of trade union facility time is one
in which each individual school makes a contribution towards the cost of releasing a
relatively small number of individuals who can then provide union services across all
schools who buy in to the Authority pooled funding.

6.
6.1

Drawbacks of Schools not contributing to TU facilities time
Governing Bodies will still be required to ensure that they have a policy in place
which meets the requirements of the Trade Union and Labour Relations
(Consolidation) Act 1992 for facilities time for Trade Union Representatives. Failure
to put this is place may result in the Trade Unions pursuing an Employment Tribunal
claim for failure to meet the requirements outlined in this Act

6.2

Pro active, early intervention and prevention of issues escalating will be reliant on
local school representatives. This will result in Trade Unions requesting additional
training for up to 7 x TU school representatives, in order to undertake the role, within
the provision of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.
This could mean up to 10 days training per representative in each of the recognised
Unions per year.

6.3

In addition schools would be required to release school representatives to undertake
duties associated with Health and Safety and Union Learning representation.

Page 4 of 8

Page 16

6.4

All cases that cannot be resolved by school representatives will inevitability be
referred to the Regional Professional Association/Trade Union Officials, who work
across a wide area normally the North West of England. As a result it is likely there
will be delays in trade union representation being available for employees, resulting
in potential delays in the process. This could be detrimental for school employees
and potentially the employer.

6.5

Engage in consultation with the Local Authority on the development of collectively
agreed model policies and procedures minimising need for schools to develop and
consult with school representatives on individual school employment policies and
procedures.

6.6

School representatives will be entitled to time off to carry out additional duties such
as individual and collective casework.

7.

Options for delivery of a Traded Service for TU Facilities Time
The service model proposed is based on the concept of schools working closely
together and having closer collaboration.

7.1

Option 1
Contribute towards a local facilities time agreement for schools to provide facilities
time for those representing Teachers, School Leaders and Support Staff at a cost of
£3 per pupil.

7.2

Option 2
Contribute towards a local facilities time agreement for schools to provide facilities
for Teachers and School Leaders for at a cost of £2.25 per pupil.

7.3

Option 3
Contribute towards a local facilities time agreement for schools to provide facilities
time for those representing Support staff at a cost of £0.75 per pupil.

8.

Recommendations
It is recommended that Governing Bodies agree option 1 i.e. contribute towards a
local facilities time agreement for schools to provide facilities time for those
representing Teachers, School Leaders and Support Staff at a cost of £3 per pupil.

Page 5 of 8

Page 17

Appendix 1
ACAS code of Practice on Time Off for Trade Union Duties and Activities
(Jan 2010 Code of practice 3)
Definition of TU Duties
•

negotiations with the employer about matters which fall within section 178(2)
of the Trade Union and Labour Relations(Consolidation) Act 1992
(TULR(C)A) and for which the union is recognised for the purposes of
collective bargaining by the employer;

•

any other functions on behalf of employees of the employer which are related
to matters falling within section 178(2)TULR(C)A and which the employer has
agreed the union may perform.

•

the receipt of information from the employer and consultation by the employer
under section 188 TULR(C)A, related to redundancy or under the Transfer of
Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006 that applies to
employees of the employer;

•

negotiations with a view to entering into an agreement under regulation 9 of
the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006
that applies to employees of the employer;

•

the performance on behalf of employees of the employer of functions related
to or connected with the making of an agreement under regulation 9 of the
Transfer of Undertakings(Protection or Employment) Regulations 2006.

Examples of trade union duties include :
a)
terms and conditions of employment, or the physical conditions in
which workers are required to work. Examples could include:
• pay
• hours of work
• holidays and holiday pay
• sick pay arrangements
• pensions
• learning and training
• equality and diversity
• notice periods
• the working environment
• operation of digital equipment and other machinery;
(b) engagement or non engagement, or termination or suspension of
employment or the duties of employment, of one or more workers.
Examples could include:
• recruitment and selection policies

Page
Page 6 of18
8

• human resource planning
• redundancy and dismissal arrangements;
(c) allocation of work or the duties of employment as between workers or
groups of workers. Examples could include:
• job grading
• job evaluation
• job descriptions
• flexible working practices
• work-life balance;
(d) matters of discipline. Examples could include:
• disciplinary procedures
• arrangements for representing or accompanying employees at
internal interviews
• arrangements for appearing on behalf of trade union members,
or as witnesses, before agreed outside appeal bodies or
employment tribunals;
(e) trade union membership or non membership. Examples could include:
• representational arrangements
• any union involvement in the induction of new workers;
(f) facilities for trade union representatives. Examples could include any
agreed arrangements for the provision of:
• accommodation
• equipment
• names of new workers to the union;
(g) Machinery for negotiation or consultation and other procedures.
Examples could include:
• Collective bargaining at the employer and/or multi-employer level
• Grievance procedures
• Joint consultation
• Communicating with member
Communicating with other union representatives and union full-time officers
concerned with collective bargaining with the employer

Page
Page 7 of19
8

Appendix 2
ACAS code of Practice on time off for trade union duties and activities
(Jan 2010 Code of practice 3)
Definition of TU Activities
An employee who is a member of an independent and recognised trade union is
also permitted to take reasonable time off during working hours for the purposes
of accessing the services of a Union Learning Representative (provided those
services are services for which the Union Learning Representative is entitled to
time off).
Example include
•

•
•
•

Attending work place meetings to discuss and vote on the outcome of
negotiation with the employer. Where relevant, with the employers
agreement, this can include attending such workplace meetings
Meeting full time officers to discuss issues relevant to the workplace
Voting in Union elections
Having access to services provided by the union learning representative

Where the ember is acting as a representative of a recognised union, activities
can be, for example, taking part in:
• Branch, area or regional meetings of the union where the business of the
union is under discussion
• Meetings with official policy making bodies such as the executive
committee or annual conference
• Meetings with full time officers to discuss issues relevant to the workplace

Page
Page 8 of20
8

Agenda Item 6
WIRRAL COUNCIL
WIRRAL SCHOOLS FORUM 30th April 2014
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES
Special School Inclusion Funding
_____________________________________________________________________

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
The attached reports describe how inclusion funding has been used by Special Schools in
the academic year 2012-13. The Forum is asked to note the reports and refer them to the
High Needs Sub Group for consideration.
2. BACKGROUND
All Special Schools currently receive additional inclusion funding, to promote the inclusion
of their students into mainstream settings.
The funding received by schools in 2013-14 is set out in the table below:
School
Kilgarth
Observatory
Gilbrook
Hayfield
Claremount
Orrets
Meadowside
Foxfield
Elleray
Lyndale
Stanley
Total

Inclusion
£
33,470
33,470
33,470
33,470
33,470
33,470
33,470
33,470
33,470
33,470
33,470
368,170

Outreach
/ Other
£
60566

Total
£

209578
179340

449,484

817,654

As part of the High Needs Top Up structure approved by the Forum last November it was
agreed that inclusion funding should be retained and be and subject to a later review.
The attached reports show how each special school has used their funding in the
academic year 2012-13 to promote inclusion and the impact this has had for children in
both special and mainstream schools.
RECOMMENDATIONS
1. That the Forum notes the report
2. That the Inclusion Reports are referred to the SEN Working Party for further
consideration.
Julia Hassall
Director of Children’s Services

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

The Observatory School Inclusion Report
Aims

Outline of
Programmes

Extended curriculum
Theme Days:
- Disability
- Multicultural
- Music
- Healthy
Lifestyles
- Heroes.

Page 23

1) To reengage our
SEBD pupils (with
diverse learning
needs) with the wider
community,
encouraging real and
meaningful links and
interactions.

Establishing links with
community groups
and organisations.

Assembly visitors, e.g.
Wirral Youth for Christ
and the Anthony
Walker Foundation.
Summer/Christmas
School Fairs.

Impact of Programmes

Barriers

Next Steps

Cost of visitors.

Continue with
and develop
theme days.
Dovetail into our
SMSC programme
and into our work
related
curriculum.

Extended Curriculum Theme Days:
Whole days, where the timetable is collapsed to enable pupils to focus on
a particular theme. The impact of each one is profound. Disability
Awareness Day allowed pupils to develop a greater understanding and
empathy of issues pertinent to disability and in particular living with
physical disabilities. The pupils now have access to a set of sport
wheelchairs purchased by the school for PE and rewards session.
The Multicultural Awareness Day resulted in a reduction of racial incidents
(currently zero). The discussions which arose from the day provided pupils
with an understanding of different cultures and the difficulties some
ethnic groups have faced throughout time. The African drumming was
particularly successful with the school continuing with one session per
week. A testament to this is one year 11 boy, who carries the ‘coffee
bean’ around with him every day since the event!
Links established with the following:
- Guide Dogs
- Work experience
- Enterprise projects
- Radio City (96.7)
- Local parish church
- Wirral Civic Award
Links with other community stakeholders and groups have been
instrumental in the reengagement of pupils – Guide dog liaisons have
seen improvements in both their attitude to learning and also themselves.
The links with Radio City have supported the school charity FOTOS to
improve the home life of some of our most vulnerable families.
Pupils are able to learn key social skills by interacting with the local
community within a safe and familiar environment. Pupils appreciate and
understand the concept of cost. The money they raised has been used to
fund trips abroad to Madrid and Paris.

Curriculum
time.
Pupil
engagement.
Resources.
Time.
Transport.

Build on
established links,
continuing to
break down
engagement
barriers with the
community.

Link foreign trips
more closely with
the curriculum
and work related
learning.

Staffing cost
for VSP.
Costs for
African
drumming.
Virtual School
Programme.

Page 24

2) To introduce &
develop
differentiated and
relevant curriculum
opportunities for all of
our SEBD pupils,
encouraging
engagement in
learning and
developing academic
skills. This will support
them in widening out
to opportunities
presented from
external sources.

African drumming
music intervention.
Wheelchairs in PE.
Reward trips.
Pupil laptops.
Coloured paper /
books & overlays.
YMCA gym.
Examination scribes
1-2-1.
Staff literacy training.

The Virtual School Programme is designed to focus on pupils who cannot
(or typically have refused to) attend school for a variety of reasons,
including health and safety (including child protection and risk matters),
family turmoil or medical reasons (the list is not exhaustive). The
overwhelming majority of pupils placed on this programme have seen an
increase in their achievement and attendance.
Routine screening for Irlen’s syndrome has resulted in significant
improvement in the literacy skills of children. However it has meant that
pupils need access to a wide variety of coloured resources. The
improvement in the legibility of handwriting and in the reading ages is
remarkable.
Reward trips reinforce the behaviour system in school thus having a
positive impact on behaviour which directly correlates with achievement
overall.
Whole school staff literacy training has embedded literacy skills into each
subject area. This constant reinforcement has been a contributing factor
to improved reading and spelling ages amongst pupils.

Cost of
wheelchairs.
Cost of
laptops.
Additional
costs for
coloured
paper and
resources.
Staff training
for screening
tests.
Staff time.
Trip costs.
Additional staff
costs for 1-2-1
exam scribes
plus training
costs.

Increase the
number of
accreditation
pathways in the
VSP to ensure
comprehensive
coverage of NC
in KS3/KS4 and
equal enrichment
opportunities for
pupils studying
within the
programme.
Irlen’s Syndrome
testing to be
completed during
initial visit for all
future pupils.
Further
embedding of
access
arrangement
provisions early in
pupils’ school
career.
Whole school
examination
week to embed
examinations as a
form of
assessment into
all pupils’
experience of
school, whatever
their age.

3) Provision of expert
member of staff to
provide extensive
support for all pupils
and families.

A member of staff is
now employed as
Pastoral Manager.
All multi agency
meetings are
attended.
Transition links with
primary SEBD school.
PASS assessment
(Pupil Attitude to Self
& School).

Our Pastoral Manager provides full and compressive coverage of all Multi
Agency Involvement meetings for all pupils and their families / carers. This
joined-up, cohesive process provides up to date and relevant information
to all key staff, thus ensuring all pupils are catered for appropriately and
sensitively.
Our Pastoral Manager leads on our school bullying policy and related
areas. Targeted CPD in this area and dissemination to all staff has resulted
in a decline in bullying behaviour amongst pupils.

Cost of full
time Pastoral
Manager.
Training Costs.

Appointment of a
Year 11
enrichment TA
charged with
sustaining
academic
progress
throughout Year
11.

Anti Bullying Training.

Page 25

4) Provide Behaviour
Management training
for school staff (our
internal staff and
external training for
other schools) and
student teachers
through Liverpool
Hope University.

Elaine Idris – March 2014

We have four
members of staff
involved in
Behaviour
Management
training.

Feedback from Liverpool Hope University has been, without exception,
100% positive. It has led to increase in our school being selected as a
preference for trainee teachers to attend here for their placements both
in PGCE and Undergraduate courses in education.
Our external behaviour management training has been oversubscribed
and future dates are already in discussion.

Training Costs.
Staff time.

Setting of future
dates for
behaviour
management
training. Working
within local
schools, providing
in-house support.
Extending our
university student
training sessions to
other local
universities.

This page is intentionally left blank

Clare Mount Inclusion Funding 2012-13
Allocation of Funding £33,000
Projects
Amount spent on inclusion programmes

Total Spend
£15000

Amount spent on outreach support

£15,500

Any resourcing costs for service

£2500

Aims of Outreach Support and Allocation of Funding
To establish an effective school-based training programme for NQTs, subject teachers,
heads of subject, SENCOs, newly qualified teachers in both the secondary and primary
mainstream sector and TAs providing:
Individual assessments to:
1. Support and/or contribute to school’s own pupil assessment processes and
procedures.
2. Include R.A, Sp.A. phonic and sequencing skills, co-ordination and laterality in
assessment.
3. Assess unaided written work.
4. Monitor output and progress through re-assessment where required.
5. Provide a written report of functioning and need.
Support for IEP writing and review to:
1. Assist school staff in the formulation of appropriate targets for individual pupils.
2. Assist in the development of assessment systems for pupils with learning
difficulties in subject areas.
Support for teaching and learning through:
1. Recognising learning difficulties – the characteristics of moderate learning
difficulties and autism (social and communication)
2. Classroom organisation, grouping and use/language of instruction.
3. Management of learning – de-coding, encoding, problem solving.
4. Management of learning – classroom support.
5. Subject specific P.o.S/Schemes of Work in small step units.
6. Differentiation – through subject, teaching styles, input and expected outcomes.
7. Subject based assessment and progress.
8. Recording systems for small step learning.
Partnership to:
1. Ensure the development of effective working relationships between special and
mainstream schools.
2. Innovate in curricular development and develop different ways of providing
effectively for a range of pupils with special educational needs and facilitating
their inclusion into mainstream activities.

Page 27

3. Promote high expectations of all pupils with SEN to raise levels of attainment and
achievement.
4. Help to equip teachers and support staff with knowledge, understanding and
skills needed to teach pupils with SEN more effectively.
Outreach Support
Schools are informed of the programme via WESCOM at the beginning of September then
again at termly intervals.
Impact of Outreach Support
Whole School
•
•
•
•
•
•

SLT/Governors/SENCO

Definition, concept and principles of
inclusion.
Entitlement of learners.
Access issues – implementing the
DDA/DES.
Benefits of inclusion.
Features of effective inclusive
schools.
Dual registration.

Subject /Pastoral Leaders
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•

Subject/Class Teachers

Subject action plans for inclusion.
Assessment for learning and SEN.
Tracking SEN pupil progress.
Using performance data to inform
SoW, PoS for SEN pupils.
Managing resources for inclusion.
Monitoring and evaluating inclusion.

•

•
•

•
•
TAs
•
•
•
•
•

Inclusion and school improvement.
Action planning for inclusion.
Access plans.
Strategic management of inclusion.
Effective deployment of resources.
Monitoring and evaluating inclusion.
Culture, policy and practice (value
added).

Practical classroom strategies to
implement the NC inclusion statement
of principles.
Implementing ILPs, IEPs, PEPs.
Using assessment data to inform
planning, teaching and learning for
SEN pupils.
Deploying TAs effectively.
Managing challenging pupil behaviour.

Pupils
Effective inclusive support strategies.
Supporting the implementation of
ILPs, IEPs.
Assessing impact of support on
learning.
Managing challenging pupil
behaviour.
Supporting SEN pupils’ personal care
and health needs.

•
•
•

Page 28

Becoming an ‘inclusion befriender’,
‘study buddy’, peer mentor, counsellor.
Becoming an inclusive learner.
How to manage stress and anger
(including SEAL).

Parents/Carers
• Concept and benefits of inclusion and dual registration.
• How parents/carers can support inclusive learning.

Evaluation of Support
Through the monitoring process, participants have gained an oversight of the standard of
inclusion existing in their schools. Evaluation of this has provided an evidence base for
triggers for intervention.
The main foci are identified as:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Implementation of the NC inclusion statement;
Fulfilling statutory duties for SEN and disability;
Policy reflecting inclusive practice;
Standards of attainment among different groups of pupils or individual dual registered
SEN pupils;
Resources, funding and value for money, best value and added value;
Effectiveness of identification and the procedures for those who experience barriers
to learning and participation;
Quality of teaching and learning;
Leadership and management of SEN and inclusion
Effectiveness and impact of additional resources;
Exclusion and unauthorised absence rates among SEN pupils.
Level of satisfaction among parents/carers and SEN pupils.

Aims of Inclusion Programmes
•
•
•

To support the integration and inclusion of pupils in a mainstream environment.
To provide pupils with the opportunity to experience different social and academic
settings.
To develop pupils’ confidence, self-esteem and independence skills which are seen
as paramount to successful transition to college/work in the future.

The attached programme illustrates the wide range of opportunities developed over time with
mainstream partners and college providers. Barriers such as transport and staffing have
been overcome by providing targeted teaching assistant support, using school minibuses
and adapting our curriculum to include OSHL and a compelling learning curriculum.

Examples of Outreach Support
•

•

Middle leader seconded to Wallasey School for two terms (0.2) to support their
inclusion agenda and work with staff to break down barriers to learning for pupils with
SEN
Member of SLT and specialist advisor in autism providing outreach support and
training. Bespoke package of support offered to schools (primary, special and
mainstream)

Page 29

Examples of Inclusion Agenda
•
•

Year 11 pupils from Clare Mount accessing taster sessions at Birkenhead Sixth Form
College
A total of 21 staff from 10 schools accessed school’s inclusion programme

Quotes
• “High expectations led to excellent behaviour and all children were engaged in
lessons I visited”.
• “Pro-active feel to the school – as if the pupils opinions really matter and they are
guided but have the confidence to voice their opinions”.
• “I have gained an insight into how and why we have specialist schools such as this”.
• “outstanding behaviour”
• “A very informative day with lots of ideas to take back”
• “Helpful strategies observed to support both individuals and groups in my classroom”.
• “Helped to observe differentiation as abilities within class ranged greatly”.
• “Helpful to observe how differentiation works within the groups – especially English
which caters for a wide range of abilities”.
• “Found the day extremely beneficial and can reassure year 6 that they will be going
to a very friendly, happy school”.
• “Good advice on strategies to use in the classroom”.
• “The children are proud of their school and have real ownership of what they do”.
• “Whole day was perfect for me”….”Just what I was hoping for”.
• “Felt very proud of your school, you are all doing such a fantastic job”.
• “Thank you for giving me the opportunity to spend the day in your school – I have
thoroughly enjoyed it. The school has a very calm, friendly atmosphere- all the
children come across as polite, happy and settled. They are confident in their
abilities. Teaching strategies – the visual, interactive, inclusive – all fantastic”.
• “All teachers very passionate about their teaching and making all children feel
confident and able in their surroundings”.
• “A calm and well structured environment for all children to learn and develop”.
• “Every child treated equally and quality of teaching is really good. Thoroughly
enjoyed the experience of seeing children with learning difficulties being taught at
their level”

Next steps are to further develop existing programmes and to develop partnerships to
support individual KS4 students to access alternative curriculum programmes in a
mainstream environment.

Page 30

Elleray Park Inclusion Funding 2012-2013
Allocation of Funding
Inclusion Programmes: £33,000
1. Background
In September 2008, Elleray Park School entered into a partnership with Egremont School.
The LA contributed £6,000 enabling adaptations to take place and Elleray Park contributed
£19,501 enabling the Foundation Stage to be resourced to a high standard. (This was not for
staff costs.)
Initially pupils from the Foundation Stage attended for 3 sessions a week. However, in
September 2009, because of the success of the project, the pupils progressed into the Year 1
class. Again they accessed this provision for 3 sessions a week. In July 2010, Elleray Park
recommended to the Local Authority that 2 of these pupils transferred to mainstream base
resource provision.
In September 2012, following the appointment of the new headteacher, it was requested that
the programme was reduced. This was as a result of the growing admission number of pupils
entering the Foundation Stage at Egremont and new teaching staff being deployed within that
area.
2. Aims:
•

To promote inclusion within the local community.

•

To reinforce the network links between the special school and a local primary school.

•

To promote joint school improvement programmes between the special school and
designated primary schools.

•

To develop pupil experiences and broaden their outlook, in a range of educational
settings.

•

To promote the full access of pupils with SEN to the life of a primary school.

•

To promote mainstream peer group access to pupils with SEN.

•

To extend pupils’ learning and opportunities in mainstream settings.

•

To enhance the delivery of a broad and balanced curriculum.

•

To enhance the opportunities for pupils to develop their social skills in inclusion
activities alongside mainstream pupils.

•

To gauge the impact of mainstreaming on the personal and social development of all
pupils; and upon their attainment.

•

To facilitate the transfer where appropriate of pupils from special schools to
mainstream schools.

Page 31

3. Outline of inclusion progammes:

•

In September 2012, Elleray Park identified six pupils that would possibly benefit from
the programme. There was no set admission criteria for admission to the Egremont
resource base. All pupils from the Foundation Stage or year 1 who were assessed by
Elleray Park as benefitting from a more inclusive setting were prioritised.

•

These pupils were all Foundation Stage pupils and were functioning at P3-P5 across
most curriculum areas.

•

Two members of staff from Elleray Park supported the children during their time at
Egremont and encouraged them to work with their mainstream peer group.

•

The pupils attended for 3 sessions a week and the LA provided the transport.

•

The pupils were fully included into the Foundation Stage. They accessed all the areas
of learning with their mainstream peers. Staff from both schools worked with all of
the pupils, encouraging them to play and learn together.

•

One pupil from Elleray Park was overfaced by the mainstream environment and it
was deemed that it was not appropriate for her at that moment in time.

•

Four of the five pupils had a diagnosis of autism and the staff from Elleray ensured
that they were fully supported in the transition into a very different environment
through the use of visual stategies and social stories.

•

The expertise of the staff from Elleray Park ensured that the pupils were secure in the
learning environment and that work could be effectively differentiated to ensure that
optimum learning could take place.

•

The expertise of the staff at Egremont ensured that the six areas of learning could be
accessed by all and provided exciting interactive opportunities for all pupils.

•

The class teachers from the respective classes were given time on a weekly basis to
plan work, prepare resources, complete assessments and provide written reports to the
Leadership team and parents.

•

One pupil also had an inclusion programme into his local primary school. He attended
for 1 session a week. The mainstream school provided the support and Elleray Park
paid for the costs for that member of staff.

4. Impact of programme for pupils in both settings:

•

Elleray Park’s pupils’ personal and social interactions showed noticeable improvement.
Significantly, pupils should have been well included in appropriately aged peer groups
and have formed friendships with selected peers.

Page 32

•

A noticeable improvement in confidence and self-esteem was evident with good
outcomes in pupils’ overall progress at school.

• A marked improvement in pupils’ on task skills and independent learning alongside
mainstream peers
•

Pupils’ progress increased at a faster rate than their peers who did not access the
programme. This was a s a direct result of being challenged by a more able peer group. In
Elleray Park they were at the top end of their peer group and tended to challenge their less
able peers but lacked the challenge from other peers.

•

Pupils were well supported and subject to high expectations by all staff.

For the mainstream pupils the benefits were:
•

Raised awareness of CLD peers resulting in good personal and social interactions. This
was an area that was focused on, as initially there was a tendency to interact with some of
the Elleray Park pupils in an over protective manner.

•

Mainstream pupils’ progression was not affected by the inclusion of CLD pupils.

•

Lesson planning and differentiation sufficiently strong to support mainstream pupils’
learning as well as that of the CLD pupils.

•

Mainstream pupils responded well to the CLD pupils and with minimal emphasis on the
differences between the two groups of pupils

•

The ability to develop friendships with a wide range of pupils with CLD this will impact
upon them as they encounter people with a variety of needs in later life.

Teachers’ Achievements (Mainstream & Special)

Special School Teachers
•

Opportunity to work in a mainstream setting.

•

Developing expertise of staff in mainstream teaching.

•

Developing staff’s ability to differentiate to a wider range of needs.

•

Staff from Elleray Park have developed expertise structuring the curriculum within an allinclusive classroom.

•

Staff have investigated and implemented in practise a wider range of learning styles and
delivery for all pupils.

Page 33

Mainstream Teachers
•

The curriculum offered within an inclusive classroom was expertly differentiated.
Suitable learning challenges were set for the pupils, with their diverse needs being
responded to.

•

In looking at the curriculum the teaching staff capitalised on the strengths of the pupils
and minimised obstacles to learning.

•

Increase in knowledge of complex special needs

•

The careful pace at which the project progressed has ensured staff confidence and
understanding in teaching CLD pupils.

•

Specialist SEN input from Elleray Park School.
5. Barriers faced and overcome

•

The Egremont project has been relatively easy to manage as the programme has now
been running for over 5 consecutive years. The success depends on the class teaching
team from Elleray Park supporting their group of pupils in the setting. The very nature
of the Foundation Stage curriculum lends itself to providing inclusive opportunities
that have proved to enhance the learning opportunities for the Elleray Park pupils.

•

The success of these particular programmes has been reliant on the expertise and
culture within each mainstream school and the commitment to fully utilise the
knowledge and skills of the accompanying support staff to ensure that appropriate
differentiation is in place.

•

Some parents were very reluctant for their child to be involved in the project. This
was as a result of prior experiences of mainstream early years settings where their
child had had difficulties settling in the environment. These were overcome through
intensive work by the leadership team with the parents.

6. Next Steps

•

The inclusion money will continue to support the Egremont base and pupils accessing
their local mainstream school.

Page 34

The following graphs track the progress of the six pupils accessing the Egremont provision or
another mainstream school.
Most notable progress was in the areas of PSHE, although marked progress was noted in all
areas. Expected progress for CLD pupils is 2 P Scales over a 4 year period (0.5 of a P scale
over a year)
Graphs clearly highlight how all pupils made greater than expected progress and this rate of
progress has to be attributed to the inclusive opportunities and challenges and the intensive
work in the special school environment.
Pupil 1

Pupil 2

Page 35

Pupil 3

Pupil 4

Page 36

Pupil 5

Pupil 6

Page 37

This page is intentionally left blank

Foxfield School
Report for the School Forum on Inclusion activities with Wirral mainstream schools
6.1.2014
Foxfield School has been involved in Inclusion projects and links with various Wirral secondary
mainstream schools for over 15 years.
Sixteen Foxfield pupils have attended Inclusion links over the last year. This number varies from one
year to another depending upon the age and suitability of the pupils and their parents’/carers’ wish for
their child to participate in such an activity. The numbers of pupils participating in inclusion links has
also fallen slightly in recent years in line with a fall in the total number on role at Foxfield but there are
strong indications that the numbers of pupils will begin to rise quite rapidly again from 2015 and so
numbers of pupils participating in inclusion links are also expected to rise.
Typically these Foxfield pupils who participate in an inclusion link spend approximately half a day in
the mainstream school but this is often on a bi – weekly basis for those who visit schools which
operate a two week timetable. This does however have the advantage of preventing pupils missing
out totally on certain lessons at Foxfield. Some pupils spend a full day at their placement but again
this is only on a bi – weekly basis so that they have a chance to catch up with missed lessons.
Our mainstream inclusion links currently only take place with South Wirral High School, but in recent
years have also included Wallasey School, Park High, Pensby High School for boys, and Bebington
High School.
This year pupils from Key Stages 3 and 4 were offered the opportunity of placements at South Wirral
High to take part in subjects such as Art, Music, PE, Dance, Art and Maths. This can require a lot of
time spent consulting with mainstream staff once their timetables have been finalised. Several
meetings are organised with staff from these schools at the beginning of the autumn term to match
pupils with suitable lessons and available mainstream staff. Other meetings and discussions have had
to be held throughout the year to check on progress and to sort out problems.
Staff from Foxfield always accompany pupils to and from the placements and stay with them during
lessons to assist in any way they can. We employ a Teaching Assistant specifically for this work. She
supports pupils on these links throughout the week. Other staff are also used for individual projects
where required. All pupils are usually transported to and from the placements by taxi. Pupils attending
afternoon sessions are escorted by Foxfield staff directly to their homes in taxis.
At present the Deputy Headteacher coordinates the setting up and monitoring of inclusion
placements.
Aims and Objectives
Key objectives for all pupils taking part in inclusion links are
•
•
•
•

To participate as much as possible in lessons within a mainstream setting according to each
individual’s abilities
To communicate with staff members and peers without being prompted
To build confidence in a different setting both in their work and in their socialising with different
sets of peers.
To offer mainstream pupils and staff a greater insight and understanding of the needs of
people with a learning disability

Page 39

There are also a range of possible additional targets for individual pupils such as
•
•
•
•
•
•

to initiate an interaction with a mainstream pupil without prompting,
to ask the mainstream teacher for help rather than being dependent upon the support of the
accompanying member of staff from Foxfield
to go the toilet in the mainstream school when needed and show good levels of personal
hygiene
to demonstrate good hygiene and skills when participating in cookery lessons,
to remaining calm and focussed during mainstream lessons
to ask politely for assistance or permission to leave lessons if feeling agitated or upset.

Areas for future development
A) In 2015 Foxfield School will move to its new location next door to Woodchurch High School. This
will be a great opportunity to expand inclusion links and opportunities for Foxfield pupils including
1) offering pupils a purely social experience whereby they can go into the High School for
lunch times or social activities when they are not yet ready to access and participate in a full
mainstream lesson
2) providing increased inclusion placements for more pupils from Foxfield who will be able
to access the mainstream school (with staff support) for single lessons. This will enable
those pupils currently not participating in inclusion links to participate when previously a full
day or half day was too much for them to cope with or where they have a particular interest
in or strength in a subject which the mainstream setting can offer.
B) The leadership and coordination of Inclusion links for Foxfield pupils will be improved in 2014 as a
result of the appointment of a teacher with a specific responsibility for this area of work in school.
This teacher will have more time than the Deputy can currently offer to coordinate and develop this
area of the Foxfield’s work and to maximise the teaching and learning opportunities offered to pupils
who participate in inclusion links.

C) To continue to encourage staff from mainstream schools to visit Foxfield
• to gain a greater understanding of the range of pupils within a school for pupils with Complex
Learning Difficulties
• to gain an understanding of the physical, personal health and educational needs of our pupils
• to gain an understanding of the differentiation required within the mainstream classes for
pupils on inclusion links
• to understand how a school for Complex Learning Difficulties operates
Allocation and use of funding
Foxfield’s annual budget allocation for Inclusion: £33, 470
Amount spent on mainstream inclusion activities
Area
Staffing – Full time Teaching Assistant
Taxis to transport pupils to/from inclusion links
Management time to plan, coordinate and monitor links
Other staffing and equipment costs:

Costs (£)
24003
6500
2535
432

Total Spend

33470

Page 40

R. Richardson
Headteacher
Glebe Hey Road
Woodchurch
Wirral
CH49 8HE
Tel: 0151 522 3900

Allocation of Funding
£28,839 for Inclusion Development member of staff ( including on-costs )
plus £4000 for additional TA support to deliver strategies ( including on-costs )
Total = £32,839
The Outstanding Ofsted Inspection of March 2013 reported:
“many pupils make such exceptional strides in their academic and personal development, that
they are able to re-join mainstream schools and enjoy success there”

“ pupils are very well prepared to move onto the next stage in their lives”
“parents recognise the improvements their children make and are appreciative of the
support they are given by the home-school liaison worker and by other staff to
manage their children at home”
“attendance at the weekly parents group is high and parents spoke warmly about the
information and advice they are given and of the opportunity to meet other parents
and carers!”
“the current outreach work with over 50 wirral primary schools is very highly regarded
and ( although funded separately ) enables staff from mainstream schools to share
best practice with Gilbrook staff”

Page 41

Aims
1. To support the inclusive needs of pupils with extremely challenging
behaviours, many of whom have been excluded from mainstream
education.
2. To provide pupils with the skills to maintain their place at Gilbrook,
access the curriculum and develop Good and/or Outstanding progress
3. To provide pupils with the skills and support to enable them to reaccess mainstream education
4. To improve pupil self-esteem
5. To work alongside individual pupils providing strategies, supporting
family circumstances.
6. To work alongside some of Wirral’s most vulnerable children,
supporting their Social, Emotional and Psychological needs to help
them be included in their local communities.
7. Liaising with other agencies including, Social Services CAMHS,
Family training and Support groups,Youth Inclusion Services and
Health Services to ensure all are working to provide as much
stability as possible for individual pupils, enabling them to access the
curriculum
Outline of Programmes
• Developing Person Centred plans to include the whole range of needs,
key needs for inclusion, and susequently help pupils feel more
included, consequently developing the whole school community as we
move to the statutory need for these plans in 2014
• A programme of anger management to identify triggers of disruptive
behaviours and strategies to manage them

Page 42

• Regular opportunities for Restorative Justice to keep finding ways to
resolve conflicts
• Solution Focussed Brief Therapy sessions to explore ways to solve
problems that constantly arise
• Weekly Parent/Family support group work including, Triple P and
developing parent skills in Emotional Resilience, parent and pupil
activities and a range of workshops on e.g. autism, ADHD, physical
intervention.
• Working alongside parents and carers to support them in developing
confidence and skills to manage their circumstances.
• 1:1 meetings with pupils about their behaviour targets and the
progress being made
Impact of Programmes
From September 2011 there have been 16 pupils returned to mainstream
education at the end of Year 6.
Hilbre x 2 pupils
Prestatyn High x 1 pupil
Wallasey x 2 pupils
Ridgeway x 4 pupils
Woodchurch High x 2 pupils
Pensby x 1 pupil
UAB Birkenhead x 1 pupil
St. Marys x 2 pupils
Beb. High x 2 pupils
All were admitted following an Annual Review and a period of transition
with the schools where the criteria for admission was agreed.

Page 43

Barriers
• Lack of inclusion policy / procedure from the Local Authority – the
system is solely based on a recommendation from an Annual Review
• Schools reluctance to admit pupils from Gilbrook
• The need to support pupils with an SEBD statement through their
transition, at least in the Autumn Term of Year 7.
• Gilbrook provides a level of support from within these very limited
resources to:
Ø Meet with staff from the receiving school
Ø Provide detailed information from the school about the needs
and “school” history of each pupil
Ø Support some pupils with their transition
Next Steps
• To continue developing the behaviour support systems that give pupils
the resources to manage their challenging behaviours
• To continue developing a common understanding of the needs of
Gilbrook pupils in relation to transition and return to mainstream
education
• To continue exploring a return to primary mainstream education for
some pupils
• To develop the Person Centred Plans to include clearer expectations
and support for all aspects of inclusion

Page 44

Hayfield Inclusion Funding 2012-13

Aims of Inclusion funding
•

To enable individuals and groups of pupils to access mainstream provision
a) For social inclusion in their local/selected community (school or after school activity)
b) To access mainstream curriculum to aid future decision making for
placement/transition.
c) To access mainstream curriculum for specific subjects/activities that are appropriate.

•

To support staff and pupils in mainstream schools to access high quality
specialist support
a) To enable staff in mainstream schools to access individualised advice on supporting
pupils with Autism and /or moderate learning difficulties.
b) To enable pupils with Autism to to be supported in their own schools
c) To support assessment and transition processes for pupils with Autism/Moderate
learning difficulties.

•

And increasingly:
To support pupils in Hayfield at risk of exclusion from this community.

Mainstream Inclusion
The following schools are identified as partner schools, though others are used for some
individuals.
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Bedford Drive Primary School, Rock Ferry.
Holy Spirit Catholic and CE Primary School, Moreton
Overchurch Infants School, Upton
Overchurch Junior School, Upton
St Anne’s Catholic Primary School, Rock Ferry
St John’s Catholic Junior School, Bebington
Greasby Junior School
St Andrew’s C of E School
Church Drive
Woodchurch junior School
Black Horse Hill Infants’ School

During 2012/13
68% of pupils accessed activities jointly with mainstream settings.
52 pupils accessed joint project activities with mainstream schools for half a term.
8 pupils attended mainstream settings for either a half day, or full day for the full academic year.
9 pupils attended after school activities in liaison with leisure links.

Page 45

Impact of mainstream inclusion opportunities for pupils
(Compiled by Inclusion support A.Lightfoot)

The key stakeholders were surveyed via a questionnaire, face-to-face and telephone interviews. The
groups were identified as follows:
•
•
•

Hayfield and partner school staff
Hayfield and partner school pupils
Hayfield parents

Response Rates
Hayfield Staff
Total

11

Partner
School Staff
7

Hayfield Pupils
32

Partner
School Pupils
57

Hayfield
Parents
4

Survey Findings
Whole Class Inclusion
Works well
when….

ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü

Does not work
very well when…

ü
•
•
•
•
•

The needs of the pupils are clearly identified and discussed at the
outset of the project
The project has a clear focus or topic and there is a visible output at the
end of the project and a pre-defined timescale.
Projects over one term are generally the most successful
Informal but regular meetings can be very positive.
Hayfield and the partner school has the opportunity to state what
outcomes they want to achieve and it is agreed how they can be
achieved at the outset
A non-academic subject is the focus of the project. Sport is often the
obvious choice but Art has greater scope for more positive outcomes
Planning and preparation is kept to a minimum for teaching staff
Both schools are visited as part of the project
An existing or positive relationship is achieved quickly between
teaching staff
Projects involve the children directly working together – with limited
opportunity to revert to their own school groupings/friendships.
Both Hayfield and partner school staff are pro-active and there is a
regular on-going dialogue and communication between teaching staff
(not just support staff)
High quality of support staff who are able to assess and report any
issues and maintain on-going feedback
Positive parental support
Weak communication links with staff e.g. email is not used effectively.
There is no sense of commitment from the partner school – particularly
the commitment and involvement from teaching staff.
Staff in the partner school do not actively re-enforce the key messages
and values associated with inclusion within their school
The ages/abilities of the pupils is not well-matched
There are too many children and there is little or no opportunity for the
peers to work closely together

Page 46

Individual Pupil Inclusion
ü
Works well
when….

ü
ü
ü

Does not work
very well when…

ü
ü
ü
•
•
•

Individual pupil inclusion takes place in a mainstream school in their
local home community.
There is time to meet and establish contact to ensure that all parties
clearly understand the needs of the child and the intended outcomes of
the inclusion.
The child attends for a full day so that friendships can be made
There is a social skills target and there is evidence of observing social
skills beyond those evidenced at Hayfield
Pro-active teacher
Inclusion plays to the strengths of the Hayfield pupil
School is sensitive to needs of Hayfield pupils
Expertise of the Support Staff is not used and they are felt to be a
wasted resource
The child from Hayfield is treated in a special way – this can equally
affect the quality of inclusion
Child is not made to feel welcome

Outreach Support
2012/13
The following schools accessed outreach support.
• Christchurch,
• Gilbrook,
• Millfields,
• Moreton Baptist Pre-school,
•
St Johns Juniors,
• Our Lady and St Edwards,
•
St Joseph's Upton,
•
Little Angels Day Nursery,
• St Bridget's,
• Oxton St Saviours
This took the form of:
• Initial visit for observation and follow-up visit for advice/ resources/actions and written report
• ASC specific training for TAs supporting pupils in a mainstream school
• Information literature for schools and parents – particularly following diagnosis
• Support with assessment for schools and parents
• Email support for schools purchasing equipment such as theraputty, ear defenders, work
stations
• Support for parents re issues such as toileting
• Loan of books/resources including assessments such as Welcomm, Sandwell mathematics
• Support with assessment using P scales and writing IEPs
• Staff visiting Hayfield for half day or whole day and spending time in classes or shadowing
appropriate staff members.

Impact of Outreach Support
• This needs further formal evaluation as we have done for Inclusion if it is to continue.
• Example feedback from schools.
From Holy Spirit – “ Your advice is so good. It has up skilled our staff and is always on
such an individual and targeted basis.”
Some recent feedback emails attached at end.

Page 47

•
•

Word of mouth means that this year already we have been requested by 4 additional
schools.
Hayfield Outreach/Advice has been written into some LA documentation and
recommended by educational psychologists

Barriers faced and overcome for Inclusion/Outreach
• Staffing – recruiting and sustaining sufficient experienced and trained staff prepared to
work on piecemeal contracts to support individuals/groups of pupils. Or to cover in
school whilst class staff are released without affecting the education of the rest of the
pupils. Many of the inclusion sessions run concurrently.
• Staffing – Levels of staffing in school have been increasingly stretched through pupils’
needs/staff sickness, making it increasingly difficult to release staff for outreach or
inclusion.
• Success of Outreach means demand has increased to a level that is difficult to sustain
with current and new funding pressures.
• Success of outreach means demand on teachers/teaching assistants visiting/training has
reached a level that needs careful managing.
• Needs of some individuals in school requiring additional support to sustain placement in
our own community, means staffing stretched to limits for safety.
• Parents anxious about taking up offered Inclusion Opportunities. And tend not to want
full time inclusion for a variety of reasons.
• No current further capacity for more children to be identified for inclusion unless staffing
issues resolved.

Next Steps
Individual
Pupil

•

•

•

•
Class

•
•

•
•
•

•
Transition to
Mainstream

•

Introduce a standard Inclusion Assessment which is completed at the
Annual Review - and any other time - to identify more individual inclusion
pupils and ensure that desired outcomes are identified.
Utilise the services and support from Leisure Links to provide social
inclusion opportunities in the pupils’ local community as an initial option for
social inclusion. This will be instead of inclusion in a mainstream school in
some cases.
Introduce [termly] Assessment and Review meeting to discuss and review
progress and any new pupils for whom inclusion will have positive
outcomes.
Agree an inclusion plan (with parents and staff) - seeking to minimise costs
and ensure maximum opportunity for communication and review with the
Leisure Links / partner school.
Focus on KS1 and KS2 for class inclusion projects.
Focus on developing partnerships with a small number of mainstream
schools. Explore the opportunity to set up a school consortium with
Overchurch Junior School and Overchurch Infants School to become the
Hayfield “link” school for the majority of inclusion.(see below)
Set a class target to undertake at least one project per academic year
and/or regular (eg. monthly/fortnightly inclusion with a partner school).
Consider more art and music based projects.
Fully exploit the resources and opportunities with our close partner Clare
Mount, to set up art/gardening and other mainstream-special partnership
projects
Use the resources, expertise and support from the LA (such as Advisory
Teachers) to minimise the planning and preparation required by teaching
staff.
Identify and target pupils in Year 3 and set up an inclusion-transition plan
with a partner school in their home community (or other if more suitable) –

Page 48

Inclusion
(general)

seeking to minimise resources.
More rigorously measure the impact and outcomes from inclusion
Continue termly Partnership Meetings with Clare Mount to ensure regular
and open dialogue about the needs of Hayfield and the support Clare Mount
can offer.
• Consider further work with a single mainstream partner : “Link School”
(In view of the close proximity to Hayfield, there is significant scope to further
develop the partnership with Overchurch Infants and Juniors. There is potential
for significant benefits beyond inclusion, such as joint training and sharing of
good practice across all areas of the curriculum and teaching good practice. If
this relationship was more formalised and a joint plan was established, the
majority of the inclusion projects could take place with our “link school” and this
would serve to reduce the resources and costs. Both schools could benefit and
a long-term partnership could be identified as a target for both schools.)
•
•

•

•
•

Work closely with Outreach to develop relationships and establish closer
partnerships – also to cover initial planning and [termly] review meetings
between partner schools and teaching staff.
Consider a reduced, or self funding Outreach service, even if inclusion
funding continues.
Discuss shared Outreach responsibilities with LA/other schools.

Allocation of Funding
2011/12 - Budget
Budget 2011/12

£33,470.00

Total Expenditure

£38, 307.34

Overspend

(£4,837.34)

2012 13 Budget
Budget
Total expenditure
Overspend

£33,470
£34, 655.00
£1,185

CLERICAL SUPPORT (39 WEEKS @ £61 PW)
STAFFING FOR INDIVIDUALS INCLUSION
TEACHER MEETINGS
TAXIS
TELEPHONE, PHOTOCOPY,
OUTREACH
OUTREACH STATIONARY (Resources)
OUTREACH TELEPHONE, PHOTOCOPY,
OUTREACH HOSPITALITY
ANNE LIGHTFOOT
MANAGEMENT TIME
OUTREACH/INCLUSION
ADDITIONAL MONEY SPENT SUSTAINING 2
PUPILS plus NURTURE GROUP within
HAYFIELD COMMUNITY

£2,379.00
£6,895.00
£300.00
£1,809.20
£175.00
£3,960.95
£360.00
£175.00
£50.00
£5,075.00
£13,476.54

3 x £14,000
=£42,000

Page 49

Dear Alex,
I saw Mrs P. today, she was so very lovely and helpful!
I am far more positive, hopeful now.
She was so very kind to talk to me in a real short notice.
Thank you for being there!
J.
Dear Alex,
Wow!!! I am speechless! You did more for our son than has been done in 6 years!
I will contact our GP tomorrow morning. I also contacted Dr B. and our new priest who is actually head of education.
I will also contact Wire.
I am so shocked to find out that B. is not even on school action nor action plus. Now I understand why the neurosurgeon was
so shocked.
Many, many, many thanks!!!
Best wishes,
J.
Many thanks for coming to the Monday meeting. Your presence was reassuring.
Mum has agreed to Statutory. After all the positives on Mon he had a
terrible week slapping 3 staff across the face including E. ,kicking and
constant spitting and using foul language. He will end up being excluded at
this rate. We are going to arrange a TAC meeting once we get the
Paediatrician to give us a date. You are most welcome to attend. In the
meantime I have been looking at the P Scales and he is functioning below
Level 4 for reading and writing and number He is working on L.4 for other
areas. I have ordered B Squared-hope it is the correct checklist. I will
have to base targets on E.Y.Foundation levels. I would be glad of help to
select the targets as there are so many. For number he is sorting/ reading
target is matching and book awareness. Listening is Lotto-though he has just
thrown it around so may start with sounds in the school. We are going to end
up with a book of IEPs!! There are so many other pupils for me to work with
and I just can't get to them at present. I am in on Mon and Tues. Also
could you bring the maths in again-sorry to trouble you but there was so
little time on Mon to look at it closely. Hope to see you soon. T.
Hi Alex,
It was lovely to meet you too. Thank you so much for visiting us, I really appreciate your visit and you writing this
report - it all looks great to me. Wednesday 5th June AM is great for your next visit. I look forward to seeing you
then.
Thanks,
L.
On Monday, April 15, 2013, L. wrote:
Hi Alex, the report is great, thank you. It perfectly sums him up. I have included some information for the panel on M.'s
adoption so that is fine for you to have that in your report. The only thing I wondered is your opinion on whether Hayfield is
the right school for him? If you agree would it be possible to tag that on the end of your report? Many thanks for all your
support.
L.
Hi Alex,
Thank you for the assessment on J. The Pscale sheets are fabulous!!! I would be grateful if you could come and
assess D. I will have to let you know when he is in, but it will be after Christmas.
Thank you for all your support and have a good Christmas

Page 50

INCLUSION 2013-14.
WEEKLY SCHEDULE AND MAINSTREAM (YR 7) TRANSFER. As at 13.1.14
Name of Child

Inclusion Staff

Partner School

AM

Monday

PM

Page 51

AM

Thursday

AM

Wednesday

Taxi from partner
school to return to
Hayfield

PM

Holy Spirit (F2)

St Andrew’s
645 7782

STARTING ON
13/1/14
Taxi at 9:30am
12:45pm

Rolling class
inclusion
11:30am
3:30pm
(Staff only)

PM

AM

PM

Mum to collect on
the playground

Greasby Junior
School (Yr 4)

Taxi at 12:45pm
Arrive for 1pm

Taxi for staff at 3:40pm.

Mum to collect at
3:35 (sch ends)

Overchurch
Infants
677 3335

N/A

Staff to walk back from
Overchurch.

Black Horse Hill
Infants (F2)
625 5238
Woodchurch
Primary School
677 4788

Taxi at 12:45pm.
Afternoon starts
at 1pm.
8:50am
(Staff only)

Review meetings
being arranged
with staff/parents.
Possible 2/3 split
between schools.
Mum collecting E.
from school at
2pm
Mum dropping M.
at school in the
morning

N/A

PM

Friday

Other notes

PM
AM

Tuesday

Taxi from
Hayfield to
partner school
- Leave clear -

Taxi at 2pm for staff
only
12:00pm
Staff and pupil

Partner
School
INCLUSIONS
STARTED/DISCUSSED AND
PUT “ON HOLD.”
20 13/14

Page 52

New inclusions to action/
Possible mainstream
transfer in Yr 7.
As at Feb 2014

Options:
Woodslee
Mendell Primary
Raeburn Primary
Christ the King
(Catholic)
Holy Spirit
Church Drive
1:10pm
645 5527
Staff and
Pupil(start at
1:30pm).
Higher
Bebington Jn

PM – day to be
agreed

(Sister at the
school).
(considering
Hilbre/SJP or
Bebington High).
Irby Primary.
(lives locally).
Considering
mainstream in
Yr7 to Hilbre or
Woodchurch.

CLASS P
CHILDREN TRANSFERRING TO
MAINSTREAM IN SEPT 2014
(NO INCLUSION)

Times

Oldershaw
Bebington High
Hilbre or
Wallasey

PM – day to be
agreed.

Parent
Other notes
arrangements/other
L. discussed with
parents

3:20pm
(Staff only - school ends
at 3:15pm)
Meeting with parents
on 11.2.14. Agreed to
start half-day inclusion.
Lives in Bebington. In
contact with Leisure
Links to develop social
peer group
(Beavers/enjoys drama.

Mum to collect K.
from school
playground

Enjoys science.
Headteacher ()
advised that the
decision needs to
be taken to FGB
meeting in March.
Headteacher
requested more
information re:
long term plan.
Year 5
oversubscribed.

Kilgarth Inclusion Programmes:

MFL:
• Funding to allow us to support our MfL curriculum using a teacher from
Wirral Grammar School for Girls
• In 2013 one of our pupils gained a C grade at GCSE Spanish
In school observations to support Special Needs Assessment paperwork:
• 3 mainstream secondary schools supported this year
Preventing the need for out of authority provision:
• Funding to support our work towards gaining National Autistic Society
accreditation
• KS2/3 transition support with Gilbrook School
• CAMHS support to provide baseline assessment of pupils on entry
Support for KS4/5 transition:
• Additional support to provide Flexible Curriculum Pathways at KS4 to ensure
all pupils avoid NEET
• 0% NEET figures 2011/12/13
Music curriculum:
• Use of Wirral Schools Music Service to engage pupils at risk of exclusion
Outreach Programmes:

Dedicated Outreach programme:
• 11 mainstream secondary schools supported on a weekly basis
• Staff work with pupils at risk of exclusion
• 2 senior members of staff employed directly for this purpose (Kilgarth’s ex
Deputy Headteacher and a qualified counsellor/Key Worker)

Meeting the Challenge:
• Bespoke behaviour management training delivered by SMT since September
2012
• Schools supported include:
o 1 special school
o 7 mainstream secondary schools to date (over 200 staff)
o Wirral Safer Schools Police Officers
o Merseyside Safer Schools Police Officers
o Liverpool Hope University trainee teachers
o Current discussion with EQ to deliver to primary schools

Page 53

This page is intentionally left blank

Inclusion Monies Report: MEADOWSIDE SPECIAL SCHOOL
Allocation of Funding: £33470
2012-13
Projects
£33,470
Amount spent on inclusion
programmes

Total Spend
This is a very valuable and effective source of funding which
underpins our Inclusion and Outreach programmes
A high proportion of the school’s budget suppports inclusive
learning activities in preparation for young adulthood. The
allocation of this funding was was very tightly focussed on
education partnerships and was significantly exceeded.

Amount spent on outreach
support

As the funding allocation has been exceeded on inclusion
activities, the school budget supports this

Any resourcing costs for
service

Inclusion, bespoke outreach and in-reach activities have
different resource implications for each project. Additional
areas for resource include: admin costs such as phone calls,
photocopying etc, cover costs such as when agreed activities
are cancelled/changed, to ensure staff get a lunchbreak,
induction and supervision of student teachers/student support
staff, visiting support staff, work experience placements, some
course fees/certification costs are included some are
additional, parental and other professional liaison costs, course
materials and transport/cover costs when staff from
Meadowside attend to present at CPD events off-site

Inclusion Programmes:
1. Aims:
• to create high quality, relevant and personalised inclusion opportunities for learners in
both mainstream and our special education setting to learn from and to develop equal
opportunities in partnership
• to develop positive “can do” approaches to meeting the needs of individual children by
responding to these with specialist advice and support
• to treat all children fairly by sharing best practise and providing a range of choice
• to reduce/remove physical and organisational barriers to enable all children to express
choice in their lives
• to support the local authority in offering a continuum of provision in it’s local offer
• to support personal progression pathways with individualised timetables and off-site
learning opportunities
• To raise parent, pupil and staff aspiration and to support transition
• To promote social inclusion, respect and community cohesion
• To motivate children to engage in learning, respecting difference

Page 55

2. Outline of programme:
We have formed links with local mainstream schools and colleges as part of our wider
inclusion programme, where we are also working with work-based learning providers,
employers, leisure and retail providers, social enterprise and the wider community. As part
of our Careers Education programme we review individual’s strengths and interests, through
Transition Planning we encourage individuals and their families to express their aspirations
for the future. We support parents to plan for the future with their son/daughter and to
explore future provision. We offer advice on local opportunities to create a personalised
progression pathway, with access to further impartial and specialist advice. Where
appropriate we will approach our local High Schools and Colleges. Experience tells us that
inclusion has the best outcomes when partners believe in equality of opportunity for all, as an
underpinning principle. This year we have successfully partnered with Woodchurch High
School, Wirral Met. College and Vocational College. We express interest in inclusive
opportunities on behalf of an individual or small group. For some, these maybe taster visits
to familiarise themselves with larger provision, or it maybe social inclusion especially if the
child lives within the local community, for some children they will have expressed an interest
or shown a strength in a particular subject and would like to study further, as a special
interest or to gain a further qualification. Bespoke Work Experience/simulation packages
may also be negotiated at Woodchurch or the Colleges for our pupils. These providers offer
a variety of opportunities for our children and we plan a tailor-made inclusion timetable.
Senior staff from Meadowside negotiate the inclusion package, identifying needs and
learning styles, completing risk assessments detailing controls, providing 1:1 or group staff
support, deploying support staff who are very familiar with the individual(s), plan transport,
liaise with parents, mentor the individuals, monitor progress and plan “catch up” activities at
Meadowside to enable progress in curriculum activities they may miss. The provider’s risk
assess and make reasonable adjustments. The provider’s administer course requirements and
risk manage the learning environment. Clear 2 way communication channels are established,
with pupils, parents and staff kept up to date with progress and involved in the child’s
learning.
3.
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Impact of programme for pupils in both settings:
Equality of opportunity
Extended off-site provision and improved individual progression pathways
Awareness raising and promotion of difference/diversity
Respect, responsibility and positive pro-active response to difference/diversity,
promoting fairness
Motivation to engage
Raised aspiration
Increased self-esteem
Awareness of opportunity
Modelling of best practice
Improved wider outcomes: children are safe, treated with dignity, provided with
opportunity for adventure, challenge and fun, in a positively risk managed environment
Progress is moderated, reported and celebrated

Page 56

4. Barriers faced and overcome
• Finance available for resources in terms of: provision of specialist support staff for
1:1/small group, access to further qualifications, access to a broader curriculum,
facilitating senior staff negotiating and planning change, provision of
suitable/specialist transport and trained drivers, shared timetabling, course fees,
Learning Mentor time re catch-up lessons, uniform, equipment
• Negative attitudes to change and negative experiences improved to welcoming
attitudes for pupils, families, staff and an improved attitude to change with
Meadowside acting as the bridge
• Accessibility issues resolved through positive risk management and reasonable
adjustment
• Skill set and attitudes improved through specialist staff modelling best practice
• Lack of aspiration and over-protection improved through equality of opportunity where
everyone is not provided with the same activity but where there are lots of relevant
activities to choose from in an accessible environment
5. Next Steps
• To extend links and opportunities to improve choice and enable improved life
outcomes.
• Improve opportunities for mainstream learners to access relevant learning
opportunities at Meadowside
Outreach/In-reach Programmes:
1. Aims:
• To provide relevant CPD opportunities for mainstream and special education staff to
support learning in a variety of environments, in response to individual need
• To support DfE approved training programmes for aspiring teachers
• To support Health Authority approved training programmes by hosting work
placements work alongside Health Authority colleagues working in school
• To support Social Care approved training programmes by hosting work placements and
visits
• To model and clarify that the role of specialist teaching and support staff is to
promote independence/self-help and inter-action with supportive peer relationships
encouraged
• To host educational visits providing a real-life experience of a special school working
environment, to support the education of mainstream learners with Social Care/Health
Care modules
• To facilitate mainstream Peer Mentors in supporting individuals with complex learning
difficulties to engage in learning
• To offer volunteering opportunities to mainstream learners to coach and support
individuals with complex learning difficulties by assisting the specialist teachers and
support staff to engage them in learning
• To develop learners skills and self-confidence, impacted by complex learning
difficulties, to deliver enrichment activities and transitional taster activities to
Page
57 pupils
primary aged mainstream and special
education

•
•

•

To offer be-spoke Work Experience/Work simulation opportunities to mainstream
learners
To raise self-esteem and independence in learners impacted by autism, sensory
impairment, medical/health condition or profound and multiple learning difficulties to
include within the mainstream of Meadowside, taking increasing responsibility in
preparing for change and managing transition
To equip some learners at Meadowside to take responsibility for their behaviour and
improve their self-motivation to engage in learning on and off-site

2. Outline of progamme:
We have established links with local High Schools, Colleges and Universities; and are a
partner of a Teaching School, offering a varied programme of CPD opportunities to a range
of aspiring professionals. We trained a teacher as a trainer to train parents and colleagues
on hand held technologies and apps. We are also part of a regional network for schools with
complex learning difficulties that plans and hosts a very varied programme of specialised
continuing professional development to teachers who are new to special education from
mainstream or new to teaching. We offer work shadowing opportunities to Wirral Met.
College, Birkenhead Sixth Form, Woodchurch High School and other local Special schools for
colleagues. There is a programme in place where Birkenhead Sixth Formers come into
Meadowside on a Wednesday afternoon to act as volunteers in supporting some pupils with
profound and multiple learning difficulties to access enrichment activities. We also offer a
range of workshops for parents to support/train them in areas including: augmentative
communication, Person Centred Planning, access to benefits, and advice on future
opportunities for their child including inclusive activities; and we invite other professionals
or graduates to make presentations and offer advice and guidance. We have provided
training to escorts for individual pupils and have offered to provide this to the LA. We also
offer travel training to support learners to acess inclusive opportunities. We have reviewed
our Parent Consultation evening format and offer information on transition oportunities,
activities where we extend the school day or offer joint summer school with Woodchurch
High School and activities for pupils to join with mainstream and special education pupils for
residential experiences. We provid our swimming pool for learners who attend Woodchurch
High School to extend the range of activities acessible for their young people and as an offsite learning resource, every week. We have a varied CPD programme to enable our teaching
and support staff to support learners to access a greater range of learning opportunity both
on and off-site. Social Care Learners from Woodchurch High School have visited
Meadowside to identify with the context of a Special School, our provision and our
population.
3.
•
•
•
•
•

Impact of programme for pupils in both settings:
Best pedagogical practice is modelled in the classroom/learning environment
Supportive approaches are modelled in the classroom to promote peer relationships
Strategies for self-help towards independence are modelled and re-inforced
Aspiring teachers have a greater insight into special education practices to draw on in
the future
A range of professionals have a real understanding of secondary CLD provision at
Page
58 to need, in partnership with parents
Meadowside and how we work flexibly
in response

•
•
•
•
•
•

Raised aspirations
High expectations
Inclusive opportunity awareness raising
Sharing facilities
Roles are clarified to strengthen partnership working
Raised self-esteem, independence, choice and inclusion

4. Barriers faced and overcome
Finance available to support the release of specialist staff to deliver CPD on and off-site to
mainstream learners, aspiring professionals and parents, in support of inclusive opportunities;
release senior staff/Learning Mentor to liaise, monitor, mentor mainstream volunteers and
university students, release staff to induct and support mainstream volunteers.
Apprehension and low expectation improved through opportunity awareness raising and views
being shared by those who have had positive experiences with the support of Meadowside.
Skill sets enhanced through training re augmentative communication systems empowering
learners and staff to prepare for change
Negative attitudes improved through deeper knowledge and understanding of difference and
how to meet individual need through positve approaches and a range of choices
5. Next Steps
• To establish links with primary schools, both special and mainstream to extend the
skills and self-esteem of students with complex learning difficulties in coaching and
mentoring younger pupils. This should also support the transition process for primary
aged pupils.
• Extend the Wednesday afternoon volunteering session to a programme that covers the
whole week and will extend to developing peer mentoring to some of our younger
children
• To raise aspiration through partnership with other education providers to increase the
choice of what they do, where and with whom
To ensure that the LA has an overview of the numbers of pupils receiving inclusive packages
a record should be kept and submitted with this report (Appendix 1)

SPECIAL SCHOOL INCLUSION FUNDING 2012-2013
Pupil’s name

27X P16

Overall
cognitive
profile P
scale/ NC
CLD

1XKS4

L3/4

2XKS4

L3/4

Mainstream
school

No of
sessions
each week

No of
weeks

Woodchurch
HS
Woodchurch
HS
Woodchurch

.5day

18

Lunch time/
assembly
inclusive
activities
DT

4

38

Ma GCSE

.5day

38

Art B Tech

Page 59

3XKS3

L2

7XKS4
5XKS4

P8/L1
L2/4

HS
Woodchurch
HS
Voc Coll
Wirral Met

.5day

38

Art B Tech

.5day
.5day

38
38

Hort L1
Fhygiene

SPECIAL SCHOOL OUTREACH FUNDING 2012-2013
Mainstream School

Number of sessions

Birkenhead Sixth Form
Woodchurch HS
Woodchurch HS
Edge Hill
Hope Uni
W Met
W Met
Birkenhead Sixth Form
Birkenhead Sixth Form

38
1X.5day
38
1 week
1 week
1 week
1 week & 2 days/wkX2terms
9 day block & 2
days/wkX2terms
1 day/wk 8-10 wks X1term

West Kirby Grammar

1X.5day wk X.5term

Page 60

Number of staff/students
accessing support
8Wed
14Soc Care
10Swim
1(PGCE)
4(PGCE)
1 B Tech 2nd Yr
1 B Tech L3 Childcare
1X 2nd Yr students rolling
prog
1X 1st Yr students rolling
programme
1

Inclusion Programme Report 2012-2013
Orrets Meadow Pilot Programme Year 2 -£33,470 inclusion money towards this
Aims
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Pilot programme for the lowest achieving children in Literacy at end of Key Stage 1 across
Wirral to access Orrets Meadow for one year
To offer mainstream pupils a free full-time place at Orrets Meadow
Children to receive specialist literacy teaching for one year in small classes with 1.5
Teaching Assistant support
Children to make rapid progress in reading and writing and to return to their mainstream
with the gap in attainment closed.
Children to be assessed for additional needs while at Orrets Meadow and barriers to
learning identified and met.
To enable successful teaching strategies to transfer to the mainstream school with the child
on their return
To offer parent workshops on supporting their child's literacy at home

Costs
•
•
•
•

14 mainstream schools accessed the programme in the second year
The places were provided free of charge and mainstream schools retained the AWPU and
any Pupil Premium.
A charge of £2000 was made by the LA to cover transport costs
Small classes with high adult pupil ratio 1:12. Each class 1 specialist teacher and 1.5
Teaching assistants - staffing costs - £65,000 plus.

Outline of the programme
• Key Stage 1 results across the authority were analysed and the lowest achievers in reading
and writing were invited to attend a one year pilot programme at Orrets Meadow – all were
identified as W (working towards level 1) in both reading and writing
• In the first year of the pilot programme, 2011-12, 27 children accessed the programme and
in the second year, 2012-13, 14 children accessed it.
• Children received specialist literacy teaching and were assessed for whether they had
additional needs.
• An Educational Psychologist carried out cognitive assessments on each child to see if they
met the requirements for statutory assessment, which could lead to a statement, either to
remain at Orrets Meadow or at another special school.
• Children were baselined on their arrival. The assessment outcomes were used as a starting
point from which progress was measured.
• Parents and children were surveyed at the start and the end of the programme about eg
self confidence, attitudes to learning etc.
• Transition visits were arranged between Orrets and the mainstream school for the child and
parents and class teachers/Sencos were invited in to discuss progress made and strategies
to continue when they returned to mainstream.
• Each term a summary of progress was sent to mainstream school and to parents. Parents
were also invited to parents evenings and to support and information sessions.

Page 61

•
•
•

Parent workshops on Dyslexia, Dyscalculia, Reading, Behaviour and ASD were offered and
were well attended, to support their child's learning at home.
Children were encouraged to attend events happening back at their mainstream school to
help maintain friendships
After the children returned to their mainstream schools, follow up phone calls were made
and surveys sent out to the schools to find out how the children had settled back in and
whether any further support was required.

Impact of programme for pupils in both settings
•

Rapid progress was made in Reading, Writing and Maths in a year.
On average progress in a term: Reading – 1.4 sublevels
Writing – 1.4 sublevels
Maths
– 0.6 sublevels
On average progress in a year: Reading – 3 sublevels
Writing – 2.5 sublevels
Maths – 2 sublevels

•
•
•
•

•
•

Pupil self confidence and self esteem was raised in all children by the end of the
programme - evidenced by pupil, parent and mainstream surveys
Teachers from the mainstream schools felt they had strategies to support the pupils on their
return - school transition surveys
Parents felt they understood their child's needs more and were more able to support them
with their learning at home - parent surveys
8 children were out forward for Statutory Assessment and all received a statement -7 met
the criteria to remain at Orrets Meadow and one to transfer to an MLD base. Six children
returned to mainstream having made progress so that the gap in their attainment was
closed between them and their peers.
Orrets Meadow has a sterling reputation as a special school and is well positioned to
diversify the range of SEN that it could meet and which the LA needs commission.
Orrets Meadow was inspected by Ofsted in May 2012. The report stated:
“For pupils on the Year 4 pilot, attainment in reading and writing is among the lowest within
the authority at the end of KS1 at age seven. All pupils, regardless of their starting points
and their additional SEN needs, make outstanding progress”

Barriers faced and overcome
•

•

•

Some children found it difficult to maintain progress on their return to mainstream without
the intensive support provided by Orrets Meadow. Many schools suggested in their surveys
that a two year placement would have been more beneficial.
The pilot was initially intended to explore and shape different options for Orrets Meadow to
meet the needs of children with literacy difficulties. The pilot showed that impressive short –
term gains can be secured for children with literacy difficulties. Since then the national
agenda for SEN has altered dramatically with proposed changes to the SEN framework and
for SEN funding. In the new system, the role of the LA as a commissioner rather than
provider is to be developed.
What has become evident as the pilot ran is the changing nature of specialist provision
required as the authority is facing mounting pressure for other types of SEN to be met in
specialist provision. The pressure is for specialist places for pupils who have social
communication difficulties. To meet this pressure Orrets Meadow has opened up two KS2
classes for pupils with social communication difficulties and SpLD. A further 2 KS1 classes
are intended to open in the near future.

Page 62

Orrets Meadow Services

SENAAT – SEN Assessment and Advice Team
Senaat supports most schools in Wirral (101 schools).
• Qualified to undertake a wide range of diagnostic tests in identifying pupils with SEN.
• Provide written reports with advice regarding appropriate support and provision
• 1:1 assessment or whole class/group screening
• Liaison with Parents/Carers and other agencies
• Access arrangements for external exams
Quality assurance systems similar to those used for the Outreach service, is used to evaluate the
impact.
Outreach Teaching Service
Orrets Meadow Outreach specialist teachers are highly regarded in the local area by schools and
parents. They work in schools across the Borough teaching pupils on a 1:1 basis as well as
providing a mentoring service for T.A.s who then continue to teach the pupils for the rest of the
week. They also provide advice and support for Head teachers, SENCos and teachers on
strategies to support teaching and learning in English and more recently Maths.
A number of Headteachers, SENCOs and class teachers requested Dyscalculia support. These
requests were acted upon and a Numeracy team has been established with 4 specialist teachers
providing this service. 18 schools buy into OMS Numeracy support.
Outreach teachers are often asked to work with pupils who have made very little progress in
reading, writing and more recently, Maths. Some of these pupils have specific learning difficulties,
others more generalised learning difficulties.
Last year pupils made an average of 1.9 sublevels of progress in reading and 1.8 sub levels in
writing. We believe this is good progress given the starting point of these children and the nature
of their difficulties.
Some children make outstanding progress. For example one child made 6 sublevels (2 levels) of
progress in reading in a year and increased their reading age by over 5 years (D.R.A.) The same
child made 3 sublevels (1 level) of progress in writing and increased their spelling age by 19
months (SWST)
Over 70 primary and secondary schools buy into the Outreach Teaching Service. All schools are
asked to complete evaluations on the Service. (July 2013).
Key Findings
• Headteachers and SENCOs reported a 100% success rate with regard to accessibility,
clear assessment and satisfaction with the service.
• Clear monitorin/assessment has helped schools to track the progress made by each pupil.
• INSET requested on Reading, Phonics, Handwriting and Maths has been successfully
completed.
Comments have included:
‘I find the service invaluable in providing specialist support for pupils here. The progress they
make is outstanding’
(Headteacher)

Page 63

‘This is a service that works.’

(Headteacher)

‘We are always thrilled with the support we receive from your committed staff. I cannot fault your
team.’ (SENCo)
‘This service is always 100% professional, 100% committed to pupil learning and a service we
could not do without’. (SENCo)
‘Orrets Meadow support is valued by both the school and parents. Our OMS Teacher is always
willing to give / share her expertise with everyone – so well informed and competent. (Class
teacher)
‘OMS has been invaluable. You cannot put a price on this service. Once in a lifetime opportunity
for any child who needs this support. A specialist service that has changed my child’s life.’ (Parent)
Next Steps
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Continue to offer Outreach Service for Literacy and Numeracy, ensuring that the highest
standards of resources and strategies are used with the children.
Develop classroom support for pupils exiting the main OMS programme.
Continue to offer opportunities for mainstream members of staff to come into Orrets
Meadow and observe specialist teaching and resources.
Develop further opportunities for Orrets Meadow pupils and mainstream pupils to interact in
educational and social activities through school to school networks
Offer SEN training to mainstream schools' teachers and Training Assistants using the
training room st Orrets Meadow.
Continue to support mainstream schools gaining their Dyslexia Friendly Award.
Offer ASD support to mainstream schools, including pupil observations, observing current
practice, offering advice to improve practice and opportunities to observe good practice at
Orrets Meadow.

Page 64

Page 65

Page 66

Page 67

Page 68

Page 69

Page 70

Page 71

Page 72

Agenda Item 7
WIRRAL COUNCIL
SCHOOLS FORUM – 30th APRIL 2014
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES
SCHOOLS BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 2013-14

1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

The year end accounts for the Schools Budget are currently being prepared.
The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the expected outturn
position and a brief description of the variations. There is an anticipated under
spend for the year of £400,000.

2.0

ANTICIPATED BUDGET VARIATIONS

2.1

The table attached compares the Schools Budget with the indicative spend for
the year. The main variations are set out below.

2.2

Early Years Grant - £0.08m over spend
Although there is an £80,000 overspend against this budget, funding has
increased following the January 2014 census. In January 2014 there were an
additional 56 pupils (a total of 2,992 compared to 2,936 the previous January).
This will trigger additional DSG of £124,700.
The Early Years budget also makes provision for 2 year olds where there is an
expected under spend of £300,000 at the year end against a budget of £3.2m.
This amount will be carried forward to meet commitments to build 2 year old
capacity for the extended offer in September 2014.

2.3

Admissions - £0.09m under spend
There is additional income that has been received from Academies, a reduction
in costs following changes in 11+ test papers and from ceasing the Choice
Advisor Service.

2.4

School Closure / retirement costs - £0.2m under spend
The enhanced pension costs arising from previous school closures are
estimated to be £125,000, resulting in a projected under spend of £200,000.

2.5

Carbon Reduction Commitment - £0.03m over spend
This takes account of an overspend in 2012-13 costs and a similar overspend
for 2013-14 prior to the scheme ending for schools at 31st March 2014.

Page 73

2.6

Contribution to Combined Budgets £0.1m underspend
Combined budgets total £2.5m and are in the following areas:
£
Discretionary Rate Relief top up
270,000
School Improvement
359,900
LSCB Contribution
30,000
School Sports Coordinator
25,000
School Intervention
674,500
City Learning Centres
814,700
School Emoluments Wellbeing and Staff
Surveys
44,600
Clinical Waste Disposal
11,600
Governors Forum
2,200
PFI Support Team
61,800
Use of School Swimming Baths
19,800
LACES
185,500
Total

2,499,600

The above contributions are fully committed with the exception of the Schools
Discretionary Rate Relief costs. These have reduced following academy
conversions and the consequent school rates liability.
2.7

Schools Forum - £0.01m under spend
There is an estimated under spend of £10,000 in this area.

2.8

Schools Planned Programmed Maintenance (PPM)
The overall PPM budget is £649,000. Taking account of the planned
contribution to the Schools Capital Programme of £200,000 which was agreed
at the last meeting the budget will be fully spent.

2.9

School Specific Contingency
The Contingency budget of £109,600 in relation to Primary and Secondary
Schools has an estimated spend against it of £78,000. Special Schools have
agreed a buyback for contingency totaling £167,000. Where there has been no
call or underspends on these budgets they will be returned to the individual
schools concerned.
Primary and Secondary
Contingency

Estimated
Spend
£
25,000
16,000
15,000
22,000
78,000

Vulnerable Children
Fender KS1 Teacher
Pension Arrears
Rates
Total

Page 74

2.10 Special Staff Costs - £0.25m over spend
There is a budget of £606,900 that covers all special staff costs such as
maternity, paternity and Trade Union Facility Time. The overspend reflects
maternity costs that are higher than planned and other exceptional school staff
costs.
2.11 School Meals
The indicative overspend previously reported has been offset within the
service. Income levels have exceeded forecasts and staff costs have reduced.
There is an indicative surplus of £50,000, which will be returned to schools as
in previous years.
2.12 Special Education Needs Transition Reserve £0.3m under spend
The 2013-14 budget is £8.3m, of which £8.0m has been committed, including
the costs to fund the High Needs MFG in 2014-15 of £330,000.
2.13 Special Education Needs Statements - £0.5m under spend
There is a net underspend in Statementing costs in schools and early years.
2.14 Independent Special School Fees £0.2m underspend
There are 82 known places compared to an estimate of 89 at this time last
year.
2.15 Support for Special Education Needs - £0.4m under spend
A significant proportion of the £700,000 central budget, which is held to review,
develop and plan SEN provision across Wirral was not committed. This area
will be reviewed in 2014-15
2.16 DSG Academy Recoupment
There is a net additional recoupment of DSG of £270,000 in respect of
Business Rates liabilities for Academy Schools. In addition there has been a
part year adjustment for Academy High Needs pupils of £180,000
3.0

UPDATE ON SPECIFIC RESERVES
There will be a more detailed report on the year end School Balances and
Reserves at the next meeting. Those new areas to note include:

3.1

PFI Affordability Gap £600,000
This is a new reserve providing funding to meet part of the 2014-15 PFI costs
within the Schools Budget.

3.2

High Needs MFG £330,000
This reserve will meet the costs of the MFG for Special Schools and
Resourced Base provision in 2014-15

Page 75

4.0

CONCLUSION

4.1

The variations identified in the centrally held schools budget set out above
have no direct impact on delegated school budgets.

4.2

The anticipated under spend of £400,000 will be carried forward at the end of
the Financial Year to be taken into account of as part of the Schools Budget for
2015/16.

5.0

RECOMMENDATIONS
That the Forum notes the report.

Julia Hassall
Director of Children's Services

Page 76

Appendix 1 – Budget Variations 2013/14

Adjusted Base
Budget
2013/14
£

Forecast
Spend 2013/14
£

Individual Schools Budget
Primary Schools
Secondary Schools
Special Schools
SEN Bases
WASP
Wirral Hospital School
Early Years
Individual Schools Budget Total

92,058,800
31,788,300
8,690,000
2,068,000
640,000
1,352,300
13,514,600
150,112,000

92,058,800
31,788,300
8,690,000
2,068,000
640,000
1,352,300
13,594,600
150,192,000

0
0
0
0
0
0
80,000
80,000

Central School Costs
Early Years
Admissions
School Closure / retirement costs
Licences & Subscriptions
Carbon Reduction
Schools Forum
School Harmonisation Costs
Contribution to Combined Budgets
PPM
PFI affordability gap

541,100
452,500
326,000
101,300
230,300
10,600
450,000
2,499,600
649,000
2,395,400

541,100
357,500
126,000
101,300
260,300
600
450,000
2,384,600
649,000
2,395,400

0
(95,000)
(200,000)
0
30,000
(10,000)
0
(115,000)
0
0

Costs Delegated to schools
Library Service
Insurances
MEAS
School Specific Contingencies
Special Staff Costs
Milk & Meals
Behaviour Support

198,400
55,200
253,800
109,600
606,900
13,900
96,500

198,400
55,200
253,800
109,600
856,900
13,900
96,500

0
0
0
0
250,000
0
0

High Needs Pupils
SEN TransitionTop Ups
Statements
Support for SEN
Indep Special School Fees
Education Out of School
Special School Transport
Non Delegated School Costs

8,298,600
5,332,900
2,292,900
3,315,300
248,600
58,200
28,536,600

7,978,600
4,852,900
1,862,900
3,015,300
278,600
58,200
26,896,600

(320,000)
(480,000)
(430,000)
(300,000)
30,000
0
(1,640,000)

600,000

600,000

(176,054,000)

(175,478,000)

576,000

2,594,600

2,210,600

(384,000)

Contribution to Reserves
Dedicated Schools Grant
Grand Total

Page 77

Variation
2013/14
£

Page 78

Agenda Item 8
WIRRAL COUNCIL
WIRRAL SCHOOLS FORUM 30TH APRIL 2014
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDRENS SERVICES
Consultation on School Funding Reform 2015-16
1. Executive Summary
This report describes the content of a consultation paper issued on 13th March
by the Department for Education on School Funding Reform. A response was
discussed with the Schools Forum Formula Working Group on 9th April for
submission by the 30th April deadline and is summarised below.
2. Background and Key Issues.
2.1 For some time the DfE have stated their intention to move towards a
National Funding Formula for schools. In recent years a number of changes
have been introduced as steps towards this goal:
- The consolidation of previously separate grant funding streams into schools
funding (with the exception of the Pupil Premium)
- The use of fewer elements within the local schools funding formula, based
on nationally held and agreed data
- The creation of separate funding blocks within the Dedicated Schools Grant
for Schools, High Needs and Early Years
- The increase in financial delegation to schools and the removal of LACSEG
funding for Academies.
2.2 The plan to move in 2015-16 to implement a National Funding Formula
has now been deferred by the DfE until the next National Spending Round.
2.3 In the School Funding allocations to be announced for next year (2015-16)
the Department are planning to introduce a new threshold for Dedicated
Schools Grant paid to Authorities - “A Minimum Funding Level”. This Minimum
Funding Level (MFL) is a minimum level of grant funding or entitlement below
which an authority can not be funded.
The calculation of an MFL for each authority is based on a formula using data
on many of the allowed factors within the Schools Funding Formula. The MFL
for each authority will therefore be different and will change as the make up of
the school population changes. The view of the DfE is that the change will
give every local area a minimum level of funding based on the characteristics
of its pupils and schools.
2.4 As part of these proposals the DfE will increase the overall schools
funding by an additional £350m, nationally about 1% of the total schools
funding. In doing this, the MFL is set at a level that is higher than it would
otherwise have been.

Page 79

2.5 There is a guarantee that no authority will lose any funding next year ie
those authorities that are funded above the MFL will remain above; however
those that gain and receive additional funding are only those who currently
are at a level below the calculation of the MFL. Wirral is not one of those
authorities.
2.6 The largest part of the funding in the MFL is AWPU - the basic amount
allocated to each pupil. The figures used nationally are based on averages
across the country in 2013-14. For Primary this is £2,845 (£2,753), Key Stage
3 £3,951 (£3,931) and Key Stage 4 £4,529 (£5,049). The amounts in Wirral’s
local formula are shown in brackets.
Other elements used are: Deprivation, Looked After Children, Pupils with low
Attainment, English as an Additional Language, the lump sum and an amount
for sparsity. In addition elements are weighted for an Area Cost Adjustment to
take account of differences in teachers and non teachers pay across the
country.
2.7 The Appendix shows the MFL for Wirral – an overall amount of £185.8m
compared to a current level of funding which is £187.5m, a difference of
£1.7m (0.9%).
The allocations are not yet final and will be updated for changes in 2014 data
later in the year.
2.8 The DfE are keen to point out that the MFL is not the same as a National
Fair Funding Formula. “We propose to use a system of MFL’s in 2015-16
simply as a way of distributing the additional £350m we have as fairly as
possible”. Further “It is not intended to reflect our view on the minimum
amount of funding any individual school needs or deserves over the long
term”. DfE10.4.2014.
2.9 The consultation paper is seeking views on:
- The Minimum Funding Levels
- The distribution of the £350m
- Changes to Sparsity
3 Schools Forum Response to Consultation
The views of the Schools Forum Working Party on this consultation are:
The Minimum Funding Levels
- The Schools Forum recognise that there should be an MFL for all children
regardless of where they are educated
- There is some concern that the MFL is based on averages of previous
funding formula decisions across the country. Whilst there is a clear statement
that this proposal is not a NFFF, it does appear to be the direction of travel.
- The MFL gives large gains to some LA’s. The Schools Forum questioned
whether research confirmed that school funding is historically low in areas
triggering the MFL and that this has not occurred because their spend on
Early Years or High Needs is above average or high?

Page 80

The Distribution of the £350m
- Generally the Forum welcomes the additional funding for schools and the
principal that the allocation is based on levelling up and not down.
- The Forum would endorse this approach in future, although recognising that
outlier authorities will need to be addressed.
- More information on the source of the £350m would have been useful, to
address concerns that the money has been found from a top slice of Early
Years and Post 16 Funding.
- The distribution of the £350m does appear to result in big gains in some
authorities. The Forum would have preferred the allocation of some of this
funding to all authorities to take account of recent flat cash settlements and
cost pressures. This could either be as a top slice off the £350m or a cap on
individual authority gains.
Sparsity
- The Forum agrees with a sparsity element and that it is useful in funding
smaller rural schools. Some care should be taken however with the weighting
of this element, since the existing lump sum provides similar funding and
weighting.
General Comments
- There has only been a short timescale for this consultation which also
includes the Easter break.
- There is still no indication of when the NFFF will be introduced or what it will
look like.
4 Recommendation
That the Forum notes the report and endorses the consultation response.

Julia Hassall
Director of Children’s Services

Page 81

This page is intentionally left blank

Calculation of the indicative local authority Schools Block funding for 2015-16
in Annex B of the consultation document Fairer schools funding in 2015-16 published on 13 March 2013
Wirral
Factor

Page 83
1
2
3
4

Unit Value

2013-14 Pupil Numbers Funding before Area
(Note 1) or Number Of Cost Adjustment (ACA)
Schools
Age-Weighted Pupil Unit (AWPU) - Primary
£2,845.00
24,212
£68,883,140
AWPU - KS3
£3,951.00
10,112
£39,952,512
AWPU - KS4
£4,529.00
7,094
£32,128,726
FSM6_Primary
£893.22
7,683
£6,862,824
FSM6_Secondary
£1,079.65
5,704
£6,158,429
IDACI_P1
£236.53
1,405
£332,238
IDACI_P2
£290.18
1,946
£564,787
IDACI_P3
£386.69
2,085
£806,331
IDACI_P4
£452.65
2,596
£1,174,849
IDACI_P5
£510.74
1,478
£754,645
IDACI_P6
£740.88
2,640
£1,955,614
IDACI_S1
£320.72
1,023
£328,135
IDACI_S2
£423.48
1,271
£538,399
IDACI_S3
£530.21
1,287
£682,273
IDACI_S4
£596.17
1,705
£1,016,618
IDACI_S5
£659.21
953
£628,249
IDACI_S6
£894.00
1,628
£1,455,275
Looked-after children
£1,009.09
421
£425,057
Low Prior Attainment - Primary (Note 2)
£877.65
5,177
£4,543,900
Low Primary Attainment - Secondary
£1,960.57
1,440
£2,822,460
English as an Additional Language_3 Primary
£504.61
487
£245,710
English as an Additional Language_3 Secondary
£1,216.31
99
£120,796
90
£10,537,397
Primary lump sum
£117,082.19
Secondary lump sum
£128,188.64
21
£2,691,961
Middle schools lump sums
0
£0
Sparsity (Note 3)
£53,988.19
0
£0.00
Total before Area Cost Adjustment (ACA)
£185,610,326
ACA (Note 4) (where the LA falls across ACA boundaries, a pupil-weighted average is used)
1.0011
£185.8m
Indicative funding including ACA (using 2013-14 pupil numbers from October 2012 School Census) (Notes 3 & 4)
Total number of 2013-14 pupils (Note 1)
41,418
Indicative MFL funding per pupil (per consultation document - B1 in technical note) (Note 3)
£4,486
Actual 2014-15 Schools Block unit of funding under Dedicated Schools Grant (A1 in technical note)
£4,547
Indicative 2015-16 funding per pupil (the greater of indicative MFL and actual 2014-15 Schools Block unit of funding above)
£4,547
Number of 2014-15 pupils (from October 2013 School Census)
41,235
£185.0m
Indicative total MFL funding (£m) (B2 in technical note)
£187.5m
Actual total 2014-15 Schools Block funding under Dedicated Schools Grant (A2 in technical note)
£187.5m
Indicative total 2015-16 funding (the greater of indicative total MFL and actual total 2014-15 Schools Block funding above)
£0.0m
Increase in total 2015-16 funding (C2 in technical note)
Notes
2013-14 pupil numbers are taken from the October 2012 School Census as updated by local authority pro formas, with subsequent data cleaning.
In error, our modelling is based on LPA-73 pupils. The intention is to use LPA-78 pupils for the final calculation.
A small number of authorities may see a difference in the indicative MFL funding per pupil of up to £1. This is due to modelling approximations in the methodology
for applying Area Cost Adjustments and the sparsity calculations for middle schools. These will be addressed before final finding allocations are published.
Per Annex C of consultation document (https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/289699/Annex_C_-_Area_Cost_Adjustment__ACA_.pdf)

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9

WIRRAL COUNCIL
WIRRAL SCHOOLS FORUM April 30th 2014
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES

A summary of Wirral Education Quality Services (WEQS) – school traded services
_____________________________________________________________________

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
This report summarises the recent developments and approach for Wirral Council school
traded services.
BACKGROUND
1. Summary
1.1
WEQS is a strategic partnership between Wirral Council and its schools to deliver a wide
range of traded services for schools, governed by schools themselves.
1.2
•
•
•
•

Aims:
To provide high quality, value for money services to schools and educational settings
Respond to needs identified by Headteachers and governors
Publicise the high quality expertise in Wirral Schools and share that good practice
To foster school-to-school support even more and in particular work in partnership with
Teaching Schools, schools with Leadership License and other providers

1.3

The main market for WEQS is Wirral schools and educational settings.

1.4

WEQS generates around £9 million of income, mostly from Wirral schools.

1.5
The main strengths of WEQS are the partnership arrangements that govern the services
with schools and the LA and these include:
Representation and strategic leadership of the traded services schools purchase;
A coordinated coherent approach to trading services from Wirral Council;
A school-as-the-customer approach from all traded services;
A unified approach to promoting, pricing, product and processes;
A single account manager and a single unified and coordinated approach to service level
agreements;
• An open and transparent approach to budgeting and resourcing.

•
•
•
•
•

1.6

The main services within WEQS are:
1.6.1
Education Quality (EQ)
1.6.2
Facilities Management
1.6.3
Financial Support – Primary & Special
1.6.4
Financial Support – Secondary
1.6.5
Grounds Maintenance
1.6.6
Human Resources
1.6.7
ITSOS
1.6.8
Software Support Service
1.6.9
Library Service – Primary
1.6.10
Metro Caretaking & Cleaning Support Service
1.6.11
Payroll & Human Resources Administration Services

Page 85

1.6.12
1.6.13
1.6.14
1.6.15
1.6.16
1.6.17
1.6.18

Risk Management & Insurance Services
Wirral Community Patrol
Cash to bank
Occupational Health
Education Social Welfare Service (Academies)
Oaklands
Music

1.7
WEQS is managed as a full cost recovery traded service to schools across the LA under
the Assistant Chief Executive / Head of Universal & Infrastructure Services utilising existing
council frameworks.

Page 86

2. Governance structure
WEQS Management Board

WEQS Operations Board

WEQS Service Managers

EQ Management Board

WEQS Management
Board

Additional Services
Management Board

Oaklands Management
Committee

CLC Management
Committee

Purpose

Membership

• To provide a strategic lead including key

Headteachers,
Governors and LA
staff

decision making for WEQS
• To represent key partners to ensure that there is
full engagement with WEQS
• To monitor and evaluate the impact of WEQS

EQ Management Board

• To advise the WEQS Management Board on key
operational aspects of EQ Services

Headteachers,
Governors and LA
staff

• To make decisions affecting individual service
delivery including, where appropriate, scope of
service, budget and costings
• To challenge and support individual service
delivery
Additional Services
Management Board

• To advise the WEQS Management Board on key
operational aspects of Additional Services

Headteachers,
Governors and LA
staff

• To make decisions affecting individual service
delivery including, where appropriate, scope of
service, budget and costings
• To challenge and support individual service
delivery
WEQS Operations Board

• To coordinate the day-to-day operational

Key LA staff

aspects of WEQS
WEQS Service Managers

• To disseminate key decisions of the
Management Board
• To receive feedback on operational aspects

Page 87

WEQS Service
Managers

3. Developments
3.1
Wirral Council is currently developing its approach to shared services which includes work
with Cheshire West and Chester (CWaC), which may have implications for WEQS and the
individual traded services.
3.2
Wirral and CWaC were recently successful with a joint bid for a Schools’ (Traded) Services
project to the DCLG Delivering Differently: Transforming Local Authority Services Through New
Delivery Models programme. We were one of 10 successful bids and this has secured:
• Up to £100k of support – including access to bespoke consultancy support
• Workshops on delivery models and transformation
• Access to an advisory panel able to provide guidance and critical challenge
• Networking events and opportunities
3.3
The council is revising two traded service offers ready for September 2014, Metro Catering
(to support schools with the new proposals from government on Universal Infant Free School
Meals); and Education Social Welfare Service. The WEQS Boards will be used to support
consultation and decision making on these two services.
3.4
The WEQS Boards will also be used to support consultation and decision making on the
other main SLAs, as listed in 1.6.1 to 1.6.15, ready for implementation from April 2015.

RECOMMENDATIONS
1.

Schools Forum to note the report.

Julia Hassall
Director of Children’s Services

Page 88

Agenda Item 10
WIRRAL COUNCIL
WIRRAL SCHOOLS FORUM 30th April 2014
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES
HIGH NEEDS UPDATE AND WORKPLAN
_____________________________________________________________________

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
The purpose of this report is to highlight those areas where the Forum should continue its
work in the coming year with officers across the department in developing and
implementing the funding streams which arise from the implementation of Part 3 of the
Children and Families Act 2014. This relates to children and young people with special
educational needs (SEN) and disabled children and young people.
2. BACKGROUND
The Act was enacted on the 13th March 2014. The accompanying draft special educational
needs and disability code of practice: 0 to 25 has been published in draft form as the DfE
are still consulting on a few elements of the code. The final code will be published in the
summer. The act introduces the new Education and Health Care Plans (EHCP) from
September 2014 which will replace statements of special educational needs over a
number of years. There are twelve different elements in the new EHCPs covering
education, social care and health. One of these elements is called Personal Budgets
(including arrangements for direct payments).
3. Personal Budgets
Personal Budgets can be provided directly to families to secure provision in the EHCP. These
budgets can include funding from education, social care and health. The budgets are optional
for parents and young people but we are under a duty to prepare a budget when requested. We
must provide information about organisations that may be able to provide advice and assistance
to help parents and young people to make informed decisions about Personal Budgets. Parents
and young people have a right to request a Personal Budget, when the local authority has
completed an EHC needs assessment and has confirmed that it will prepare an EHC plan. They
may also request a Personal Budget during a statutory review of an existing EHC plan.
Personal budgets may include areas such as a Teaching Assistant brought in by a parent or the
direct provision of other specialist support.
There are four different ways parents and or young people can be involved in securing
provision:
•

Direct payments – where individuals receive the cash to contract, purchase and manage
services themselves

•

An arrangement – whereby the local authority, school or college holds the funds and
commissions the support specified in the plan (these are sometimes called notional
arrangements)

•

Third party arrangements – where funds (direct payments) are paid to and managed by
an individual or organisation on behalf of the parent or young person

•

A combination of the above

Page 89

4 Setting and Agreeing Personal Budgets
The child’s parent or the young person will be given an indication of the level of funding
available to make the provision specified, or proposed to be specified in the EHC plan. An
indicative figure can be identified through a resource allocation or banded funding system which
we need to develop. Final allocation of funding budget must be sufficient to secure the agreed
provision specified in the EHC plan and must be set out in the plan as part of that provision.
As part the development of personal budgets over the coming year discussions may need to
take place with schools about the potential for organised arrangements for increasing the
participation of children and young people locally and the potential of our special schools in
promoting and providing specialism through contracted agreements with the local authority and
families. Initially these discussions will be considered through the Schools Forum High Needs
Working Group.
The scope of personal budgets will increase over time as we develop our joint commissioning
arrangements.
5 High Needs Working Group
The proposed terms of reference for this sub group of the Forum are to consider:
-

The arrangements for Personal Budgets as described above
The use of Inclusion Funding in Special Schools
To document and approve the High Needs Funding System
Consider changes in funding bands proposed by schools and bases.
Review and develop the banding system, including as it may apply to Post 16
To develop Service Level Agreements for Resourced Base Provision and outreach
services
Consider changes to High Needs Places
Respond to national changes outlined or consultations on High Needs

A work plan for the group will be agreed at the first meeting in May.

RECOMMENDATIONS
1. That the Forum notes the report.

Julia Hassall
Director of Children’s Services

Page 90

Agenda Item 11
Minute relating to the Schools Meals and universal meals for infants
171

SCHOOL MEALS AND UNIVERSAL FREE SCHOOL MEALS FOR INFANTS
Councillor Tony Smith presented a report by the Director of Children’s Services that sought the
Cabinet’s approval for an increase in the price of all paid school meals provided by METRO
services to £2.30 with effect from 1 September 2014. In addition the report set out the
arrangements that would need to be put in place in order to implement the new statutory
requirement for universal free schools meal for infants from September 2014.
Attached to the report at Appendix A was the School Meals Service Trading Account 2013-14.

RESOLVED: That
(1) the price of a paid school meal be increased to £2.30 from
September 2014 in primary schools where services are provided
by METRO Services and this increase be recommended to
governing bodies of primary and special schools;
(2) Subject to the Council’s approval, the capital grant received to
implement universal free school meals for infants in maintained
schools totalling £623,802 be included with the capital programme
for 2014-15 and be used to progress the range of schemes
described; and
(3) METRO school kitchen staffing number be increased to take
account of additional meal numbers, with costs funded by
schools and a Department for Education revenue grant based on
£2.30 per additional free meal served.

Page 91

WIRRAL COUNCIL
CABINET
13 MARCH 2014

WARD/S AFFECTED:

SCHOOL MEALS AND UNIVERSAL FREE
SCHOOL MEALS FOR INFANTS
ALL

REPORT OF:

DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES

SUBJECT:

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO
COUNCILLOR TONY SMITH
HOLDER:
KEY DECISION?
(Defined in YES
paragraph 13.3 of Article 13
‘Decision Making’ in the Council’s
Constitution.)
1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
This report seeks approval for an increase in the price of all paid school meals
provided by METRO services to £2.30 with effect from 1st September 2014. In
addition the report sets out the arrangements that will need to be put in place in order
to implement the new statutory requirement for universal free schools meal for infants
from September 2014.

2.0

BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES

2.1

School Meal Price Increase

2.1.1 School meal prices are determined by school governing bodies. Where a meal
service is provided by the Council on behalf of schools, prices are still determined by
the school, having taken account of advice provided by the Local Authority.
2.1.2 The Council’s advisory meal price was last increased in September 2008 from £1.70
to £2.00. There has been no change since that date as the service has broken even.
This situation changed in the last year and it is now necessary to increase the charge
per meal. Moving forward we will ensure an annual review takes place which is in line
with the Council’s annual review of fees and charges.
2.1.3 The Council METRO service provides a meals service to 80 schools in Wirral
3 nursery schools
64 primary schools
13 special schools
It is estimated that in 2013-14 the service will provide over 6,100 meals a day, In a
year 600,000 are paid meals (52%) and 550,000 are free (48%). A number of schools
have in recent years made their own arrangements for school meals which has
reduced the overall number of meals served by METRO. The service has a turnover
in excess of £4m per annum, giving a unit cost per meal of £2.87.

Page 92

2.1.4 In the current year the service is unlikely to breakeven and may declare a loss (within
the schools budget) of up to £80,000. The main factors are:
•
•

Food costs. Inflation in this area is significant; price increases have only recently
started to slow down. The unit cost per meal is 90p set against a target of 76p.
There has been a reduction in the number of free school meals and an increase in
paid meals, where there is a subsidy of 30%.

The expansion of the school meals service described below will tackle some of these
increased costs, in providing greater economies of scale. Menus will be reviewed and
cost comparisons in kitchens will identify where further action is needed. The outcome
from these changes will also be reflected in a review of the School Meals Service
Level Agreements.
2.1.5 Recently there has been a change in the number of pupils who are entitled to Free
School Meals (FSM). The number of pupils aged 5-16 registered for free school
meals in January 2014 fell to 8,439 from 8,936 12 months previously, an overall
reduction of 5%. This reduction reflects the increasing numbers of parents claiming
Working Tax Credit, rather than Child Tax Credit. Overall the FSM percentage has
reduced from 25% to 20% over the period 2008 to 2014. The change in the balance
of meals provided in schools will increase the reliance on income generated from paid
meals, where there is currently a large subsidy as indicated below.
2.1.6 In the area the current comparable meal prices are:
Cheshire West and Chester
Lancashire
Sefton
Cheshire East
Halton
Knowsley
St Helens

£2.15
£2.20
£1.75
£2.10
£2.10
£1.70
£2.10

Whilst Wirral’s price would exceed those quoted above, these rates apply to 2013-14
only. All meal services will be facing increased cost pressures.
2.2

Universal Free School Meals for Infants – additional revenue funding
The Chancellor of the Exchequers Autumn Statement confirmed both revenue and
capital funding to introduce free school meal entitlement for all children in reception,
year 1 and year 2 with effect from September 2014. This will be a legal duty, included
as part of the Children and Families Bill.
More recently at the end of January the Secretary of State indicated that funding will
be provided to schools at a rate of £2.30 for each meal taken – based on those infant
pupils that are newly eligible for a free meal.
Evidence from national pilot schemes indicates that not all parents of infant aged
children will take up an offer for a free meal; and on this basis take up may be
between 80 – 90%. However pilots do point to a likelihood that the introduction of free
meals for infants is likely to lead to greater take up of school meals in other year
groups too.

Page 93

At 90%, the overall number of additional infant meals is estimated to be 1,500.000 per
anum, resulting in a revenue grant of £3,450,000, a share of which would be payable
to each maintained primary school.
The grant in respect of Wirral’s 80 schools who buy a METRO service would be
£2,300.000. This reflects an estimated increase of 1 million meals which would
increase current meal volumes by more than 80%. The Meal Grant would fund
additional food costs, maintenance, training and staffing. At this time it is thought
likely that the school kitchen workforce will need to increase from 270 by a further 80
to 100 posts.
This report is seeking the initial approvals in order to start a recruitment process that
will have trained staff in post by 1st September 2014.
2.3

Universal Free School Meals for Infants – additional capital funding
The new policy for free school meals is supported by additional capital funding. This
provides funding for the investment required in kitchens to increase capacity. Wirral’s
allocation from an overall sum of £150m is £623,802 for maintained schools and
£241,048 for Aided Schools giving £864,850 in total. The allocation is in the form of a
capital grant.
All school kitchens have been surveyed; most funding will be directed towards
increasing storage, equipment and food preparation areas. There will also be a need
for additional dining furniture. At one or two sites where there is limited space some
structural alterations may also be necessary. Investment will be made as prioritised as
required across all school sites, irrespective of meals provider.
The allocation for maintained schools of £623,802 will be added to the Children and
Young People’s capital programme for 2014-15.

3.0

RELEVANT RISKS

3.1

The steps that will be taken following agreement of this report will minimise any risk
that the requirement to offer free meals for infant aged children in schools would not
be met.

4.0

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

4.1

There have been no other options considered as part of this report.

5.0

CONSULTATION

5.1

The proposals in the report will be considered by the Schools Forum and the Primary
and Special Headteacher working groups prior to implementation

6.0

IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS

6.1

There are no direct implications for VCF groups.

Page 94

7.0

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS

7.1

Wirral Infant, Primary and Primary Special Schools will receive a school meals grant in
addition to their revenue budget for 2014-15. The amount in a full year has been
provisionally estimated at £3,450,000, the grant from September 2014 (part year)
would be in the region of £2,300,000, more precise information will be known as the
scheme is implemented.
Grant in respect of 80 schools where METRO provide a meals service is estimated to
be £2,300,000 (part year £1,500,000).
The grant will fund the additional costs described in schools and within the trading
account

7.2

The CYP capital programme should be amended to include the school meal capital
grant of £623,802, funding a programme of alterations and additional equipment in
maintained primary schools. The programme for aided schools totalling £241,048 will
be developed with the Dioceses.

7.3

The expansion of the meals service will result in the recruitment of additional staff.
The exact number required is calculated from a ratio of staffing hours to meals
produced. At this stage it is anticipated there would be a need for an additional 80 to
100 staff. Schools who self provide the meals service or use another provider are also
likely to increase their staffing levels.

8.0

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

8.1

The requirement to provide Free Infant School Meals from September 2014 will be a
statutory duty on maintained primary schools and academies.

9.0

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality?
(a) Yes and impact review can be found via the following link:
http://www.wirral.gov.uk/my-services/community-and-living/equality-diversitycohesion/equality-impact-assessments/eias-2010-0

10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS
10.1 The preparation of additional meals will increase the use of fuel in Kitchens. From April
2014 schools have been withdrawn from the Carbon Reduction Scheme.
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
11.1 Any planning requirements arising from capital work in kitchens will be complied with.

Page 95

12.0 RECOMMENDATION/S
12.1 That the price of a paid school meal is increased to £2.30 from September 2014 in
primary schools where services are provided by METRO Services and that this increase
is recommended to governing bodies of primary and special schools.
12.2 Subject to Council approval that the capital grant received to implement universal free
school meals for infants in maintained schools totalling £623,802 is included with the
capital programme for 2014-15 and is used to progress the range of schemes
described.
12.3 That METRO school kitchen staffing number are increased to take account of additional
meal numbers, with costs funded by schools and a DfE revenue grant based on £2.30
per additional free meal served.
13.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S
13.1 To make arrangements for the introduction of universal free school meals for infants in
primary schools and the increase in price of paid school meals from £2.00 to £2.20.
REPORT AUTHOR:

Andrew Roberts
Senior Manager School Funding and Resources
telephone: (0151 666 4249)
email: andrewroberts@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES
None
REFERENCE MATERIAL
Secretary of State Letter 23rd January 2014
Capital Allocation 18th December 2013
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting

Date

None

Page 96

Agenda Item 12

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\3\9\AI00024930\$xps21vze.doc

WIRRAL COUNCIL
WIRRAL SCHOOLS FORUM – 30th APRIL 2014
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES
Proposals for Pupil Premium Plus
______________________________________________________________
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
From 1 April 2014 Pupil Premium Plus funding must be managed by the
Virtual Headteacher. This paper outlines initial proposals for how this process
will be managed. Pupil Premium Plus funding must be used to improve
attainment and/or progress of Looked After Children.
Pupil Premium Plus – Proposed response to the changes to the
Conditions of Grant from 1 April 2014.
LEGISLATION
The Department of Education has published the Pupil Premium 2014-15
Conditions of Grant for local authorities.
(To view the document click here:
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/pupil-premium-grant-2014-to2015-conditions-of-grant)
With regard to Looked After Children (LAC) the following important changes
for 2014-15 have been made:
•

the cohort of looked after children who attract the premium includes
children looked after from the first day of care rather than, as
previously, only those who had been looked after for six months or
more;

•

funding for looked after children, for 2014-15, will be retained by the
virtual school head (VSH) in the local authority rather than passed
down to schools as previously. We would expect that once the VSH
has identified and agreed the programme of activity with the school the
pupil attends, that the funding would be passed down;

•

a looked after child will attract the Pupil Premium of £1,900, but will not
additionally attract the “Ever 6 FSM” premium of £1,300 or £935. A
looked after child can still attract the Service Child Premium if eligible;
and

•

the conditions of grant for 2014-15 make it a requirement for local
authorities to pass down pupil premium funding to special PRUs and
non-maintained special schools. It was considered that the previous

Page 97

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\3\9\AI00024930\$xps21vze.doc

arrangements, which gave LAs flexibility to retain this funding or pass it
down to schools, may not result in the best use of resources as these
schools were receiving funding for some of their pupil premium pupils
but not others. Special academies and free schools, and AP
academies and free schools will receive funding directly from the
Education Funding Agency.
Extract from the Conditions of Grant document (Page 9)
6

C. Looked After Children (LAC)

Basis of the allocations to the local authority
16. The Department will allocate a provisional allocation of £1,900 per
child for the number of children looked after for at least one day as
recorded in the March 2013 Children Looked After Data Return
(SSDA903) and aged 4 to 15 at 31 August 2012. This allocation will be
updated and finalised in October 2014 based on the number of
children looked after for at least one day as recorded in the March
2014 Children Looked After Data Return (SSDA903) and aged 4 to 15
at 31 August 2013.
Use of the Looked After Children Premium
17. The grant allocation for Looked After Children must be managed by
the designated Virtual School Head 7 in the authority that looks after
those children to be used for the benefit of the looked after child’s
educational needs as described in their Personal Education Plan
(PEP). The Virtual School Head should ensure there are arrangements
in place to discuss with the child’s education setting – usually with the
designated teacher – how the child will benefit from any pupil premium
funding. The local authority is not permitted to carry forward funding
held centrally into the financial year 2015-2016. Grant held centrally
that has not been spent by 31 March 2015 will be recovered as set out
in paragraphs 21 and 24 below.
IMPLICATIONS OF THE LEGISLATION
These conditions clearly direct the Local Authority to change the current
system of allocating Pupil Premium Plus (PPP) to schools. Furthermore it
clearly links the allocation of funding to the planning and for Looked After
Children (LAC), the main from of planning is via the Personal Education Plan
(PEP).
The funding allocation for the Summer term 2014 for current LAC will not
require plans to be agreed.
This first group of pupils who will be affected by this change will be those in
the Academic Year 2014-15. Prior to allocation of funds discussions will be
required between the Virtual School Headteacher and the School to agree on
plans for the use of PPP. From April 2014, Schools will be required to identify
how the PPP will be used to improve attainment and/or progress and this
should be reflected in the individual PEP.

Page 98

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\3\9\AI00024930\$xps21vze.doc

Discussions with Schools will begin and it is aimed to have most plans agreed
by the end of the Summer term 2014 for implementation from September
2014. As with other Pupil Premium funding, this is not a personal allowance
for LAC and schools will choose how they use the funds. The key questions
that will be asked about the plans will be:
Do you intend to use any PPP funds for the individual LAC?
How will the attainment/progress of the LAC benefit from the school’s planned
use of PPP?
This information will be recorded on PEPs so that Social Workers and Carers
will be able to discuss these plans with school.
Evaluation of the PPP will be directly linked to the impact on attainment and/or
progress.
PROPOSED PROCEDURES FOR THE ALLOCATION OF PUPIL PREMIUM
PLUS (PPP)

Arrangements to discuss with the child’s education setting – usually with the
designated teacher – how the child will benefit from any pupil premium
funding.
Pupil Premium Plus (PPP) will not be transferred to schools without a
discussion with the Virtual Headteacher. This will be done in the first instance
between the Educational Progress Officer (EPO) and the school’s Designated
Teacher (DT) for Looked After Children. The DT must be able to make
decisions and influence the way the PPP is used within the school. PPP is for
improving progress and Attainment of LAC and particularly for closing the gap
between the attainment of LAC and their peers at the end of Key Stage 1, 2
and 4. Following the discussion between the EPO and DT, the EPO will
present the plans to the Virtual School panel for approval.
Once plans for the use of PPP are agreed the school will receive the funds in
5/12th (1 April 2014 to 31 August 2014) and 7/12th (1 September 2014 to 31
March 2015).
For the Financial year 2014-15, the 5/12 funding will be used to support the
existing plans for the current LAC in schools up to 31 August 2014.
The 7/12 funding will be used to support the plans for the LAC in schools for
the academic year 2014-15. The exception for this may be for LAC who are
joining the school as part of the new intake in September 2014. Once the
initial assessments are complete and plans are in place for the new intake
LAC, the funds will be released once they have been considered by the
Virtual school panel. This process will roll on from year to year. To speed up
the release of funds, it is strongly recommended that PEPs are organised in

Page 99

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\3\9\AI00024930\$xps21vze.doc

the Summer term of year 6, and where possible, involves the DT from the
Secondary School so that plans for progression in year 7 can be compiled
and agreed as soon as possible in year 7. These can then be discussed with
the EPO either in the Summer term or early in the Autumn term.
The planned spend for PPP should be based on an academic year.
Key questions that will asked by the EPO:
Will the use of PPP be used specifically for this child to get them back on
the “flightpath”?
How will this LAC benefit from the use of PPP to get them back on the
“flghtpath” or maintain appropriate progress?
For Wirral LAC who are educated outside the borough a similar
mechanism will be implemented.
For schools that have LAC from other Local Authorities on their roll, the
mechanism for allocating Pupil Premium Plus to schools will be decided by
individual Local Authorities.
KEY INDICATORS FOR MEASURING SUCCESS AND “CLOSING THE
GAP” FOR LAC:
Previous End of Key Stage data will be used as a baseline for the previous
levels of attainment, progress, attendance and exclusions. For attainment,
these are currently:
Key Stage

EYFS
Key Stage 1
Key Stage 2
Key Stage 4

Attainment
Age Related Expectation (ARE)
The “flightpath”
Good Level of Development (GLD)
Level 2+ Reading, Writing and
Mathematics
Level 4+ Reading, Writing and
Mathematics
5A*-C including English and
Mathematics

Schools will be responsible for using their assessment processes to monitor
and report on the attainment and progress of the child. This information will be
monitored in line with current LACES procedures.
Each of these measures will be used to identify the current position of the
Looked After Child. If any of the measures are not in line with the child’s Age
Related Expectations (ARE), then plans should be formulated to identify what
is needed to get the child back on the “flightpath”. For some LAC getting them
back on the “flightpath” is an unrealistic expectation; this should be identified
through the PEP process as early as possible and appropriate progress

Page 100

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\3\9\AI00024930\$xps21vze.doc

measures identified. For all LAC their destination at the end of the next key
stage should be kept in mind when formulating plans and allocating funding.
These measures are due to change as Assessment without levels is
developed and Progress 8 measures are introduced. However, it is expected
that there will be some measure that will reflect the ARE. If a child attains
these age related attainment indicators, then they are “on the flightpath”.
“Closing the gap”
LAC are one of several vulnerable groups whose attainment and progress is
compared to their peers. Currently and historically LAC do not attain as well
as their peers and a significant number of them are “below the flightpath”. The
challenge for Local Authorities and schools is to identify where LAC are adrift
of the “flightpath”. Schools must implement strategies to get the LAC back on
and preferably above the “flightpath” to ensure “gaps” are closed and the LAC
moves on to the next Key Stage in line with their peers. Local Authorities are
charged with the responsibility to ensure
Pupil Premium Plus funding to close the attainment gap between LAC and
other children.
Recommendations:
1. Schools Forum notes the report
2. Schools are asked to consider the implications of the report and feedback
via the Headteacher Consultation Groups any initial concerns regarding the
proposals for PPP allocation.

Page 101

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 13
WIRRAL COUNCIL
SCHOOLS FORUM – 30th APRIL 2014
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES
SCHOOL PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVE (PFI) COSTS

1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

The report sets out the background to the Schools PFI contract, the
“affordability gap” and the Council’s Budget Savings for 2015-16.

2.0

BACKGROUND

2.1 The Wirral Schools PFI project agreement was signed by the Council, school
governing bodies, and the PFI contractor in March 2001. The scheme involved
the rebuild / refurbishment of one primary and eight secondary schools in
Wirral. These were:
Leasowe Primary
Bebington High
University Academy of Birkenhead
South Wirral High
Weatherhead High
Hilbre High
Prenton High
Wallasey High
Wirral Grammar Girls
Variations were subsequently agreed for the construction of two City Learning
Centres (CLC’s) located on PFI sites, one at Wallasey and one at Hilbre.
The contract was originally for 25 years to July 2029, but in September 2004 it
was extended by 2 years and will expire in July 2031. Construction works were
completed in August 2006. In addition to funding major investment of those
schools in the worst condition in the late 1990’s, the scheme has also allowed
the re-direction of subsequent capital funding to the remainder of the school
estate over a 10 year period.
In addition to construction the PFI contract provides for facilities management
(FM) support services in schools. These services include building and grounds
maintenance, catering, cleaning and caretaking, security, utilities and
telecommunications.
An annual sum is paid to the PFI contractor Wirral Schools Services for the cost
of PFI. This “unitary charge” represents the repayment of capital costs for

Page 103

rebuilding / refurbishing the schools and a payment for the cost of providing
facilities management services.
The contract makes provision for the total costs to increase each year by the
December Retail Prices Index, less 10%.

3.0

PFI COSTS
In 2014 -15 the annual PFI contract cost (excluding CLC’s) will be £11m.
These costs are in part financed by a PFI Government Grant. This is a fixed
annual grant for the duration of the contract to 2031 and totals £5.5m per
year. In addition each PFI school will pay its share of FM support service
costs. In total these are currently £3m. FM costs are subject to periodic
review and benchmarking, following which the amount paid may be amended.
The changes resulting from the first benchmarking exercise will be
implemented shortly.
In summary there are contract payments of £11m which are met by
government grant and schools contributions of £8.5m, leaving a gap (the PFI
affordability gap) of £2.5m. Up until now this has been met by a matching
Council contribution from funding outside the schools budget. The DfE have
confirmed that in many authorities the affordability gap is funded at the outset
from the overall schools budget.

4.0

COUNCIL SAVINGS
In 2014-15 the Council reduced its contribution to Schools PFI costs by
£600,000. This will be covered by a one off reserve created from a central
schools budget underspend in 2013-14. This is described elsewhere on the
agenda.
In 2015-16 the Council will reduce its contribution to costs by £2.3m. This
change will require permanent savings to be identified within the overall
Schools Budget.

5.0

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that the Schools Forum Formula Working Group identify
and review the funding options for the changes described. The group would
meet in the summer term and report back to the next meeting in July.

Julia Hassall
Director of Children's Services

Page 104

WIRRAL SCHOOLS FORUM – 30th April 2014
WORK PLAN
Meeting Date
2nd July 2014

October/November 2014

January 2015

Mar/April 2015

Elect chair & vice chair
Final DSG 2014-15
Budget monitoring update
Combined budgets
Arrangements for SEN
and early years

Schools Settlement
Schools Budget
Budget monitoring update
Pupil Premium
De-delegation of budgets

Schools Budget update
2015-16
School Budget Monitoring
2014-15

Page 105

Budget

Schools Budget Outturn
School Balances and
Reserves
Home Tuition

Consultation

School funding formula
proposals 2015-16

DfE Regs &
guidelines

Scheme for Financing
Schools

School Finance
Regulations

Working
Groups

High Needs and SEN
Schools Funding Formula
Traded Services

Early Years Formula
SEN Funding Formula
Schools Funding Formula

Other

Harmonisation Update

National Fair Funding
Formula for schools

e:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\2\3\9\ai00024932\$2zkwufkh.doc

Raising attainment
Excess Balances

Agenda Item 14

Membership

Traded Services
High Needs SEN

This page is intentionally left blank

